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Letters of transmittal 

31 March 2004 

I have the honour to transmit the financial report and accounts of the United 
Nations Environment Programme, including associated trust funds and other related 
accounts for the biennium ended 3 1 December 2003, which I hereby approve. 

The financial statements of the United Nations Environment Programme for 
the biennium ended 31 December 2003 have been prepared in accordance with 
financial rule 106.10 of the United Nations and financial rule 213.3 of the United 
Nations Environment Programme. 

A summnry of significnnt nccounting policies applied in the preparation of 
these statements is included as notes to the financial statements. These notes provide 
additional information and clarifications on the financial activities undertaken by the 
organization during the period covered by these statements for which the Secretary- 
General has administrative responsibility. 

Copies of these statements are made available to both the Advisory Committee 
on Administrntivc and Budgctnry Questions nnd the Board of Auditors. 

(Signed) Klaus TBpfer 
Executive Director 

United Nations Environment Programme 

The Chairman of the Board of Auditors 
United Nations 
New York 

Y 



~~ 

9 July 2004 

I have the honour to transmit to you the financial statements of the Fund of the 
United Nations Environment Programme for the biennium ended 3 1 December 2003, 
which were submitted by the Executive Director. These statements have been 
examined by the Board of Auditors. 

In addition, I have the honour to present the report of the Board of Auditors 
with respect to the above accounts, including an audit opinion thereon. 

(Signed) Shauket A. Fakie 
Auditor-General of the Republic of South Africa and 

Chairman, I Jnited Nations Board o f  Auditors 

The President of the General Assembly of the United Nations 
New York 

vi 
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Chapter I 
Financial report for the biennium ended 31 December 2003 

Introduction 

1. The Executive Director has the honour to submit herewith the financial report, 
together with the accounts, of the Fund of the United Nations Environment 
Programme (UNEP) including associated trust funds, and the related accounts for 
the biennium ended 31 December 2003. The accounts consist of 14 statements 
supported by 6 schedules and notes to the financial statements. These accounts were 
transmitted to the Board of Auditors on 3 1 March 2004. 

2. As prescribed by financial regulation 1.2 of the United Nations, the financial 
period of the Organization consists of two consecutive calendar years, the first one 
being an even year. The interim accounts for the first year, ended 31 December 
2002, of the biennium 2002-2003 were made available to the Governing Council at 
its twenty-second session. The Board of Auditors conducted an interim audit on 
these accounts and did not report to the Advisory Committee on Administrative and 
Budgetary Questions any situations which should be brought to the attention of 
Member States. 

3. Comparative figures for the biennium 2000-2001 as appropriate, have been 
reflected in the financial statements. The length of the financial report has been kept 
to the minimum, in accordance with United Nations guidelines. 

4. The financial statements and schedules, as well as the notes thereon, are an 
integral part of the financial report. 

Levels of appropriations, allocationslallotments, expenditures and commitments 

5 .  The Governing Council, in its decision 21/31 of 9 February 2001, approved 
appropriations for the Environment Fund for the biennium 2002-2003 of $100 
million for the programme of work, $5 million for the programme reserve and 
$14.88 million for the support budget. 

6. Total appropriations, allocations/allotments and expenditures for the biennium 
ended 31 December 2003 were as follows (in thousands of United States dollars): 

~~ 

Allocations Unexpended Unexpended 
Appropriations issued for Expenditures appropriotions allocations for 
for 2002-2003 2002-2003 for 2002-2003 for 2002-2003 2002-2003 

Environment Fund 
programme of work I00 000 I00 000 96 187 3 213 3 213 
Environment Fund 
programme reserve 5 000 5 000 2 922 2 078 2 078 

Environment Fund 
support budget 14 876 I 1  904 10 256 4 620 1648 

Total 119 876 116 904 109 965 9 911 6 939 

1 
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Chapter I1 
Report of the Board of Auditors 

Summary 
The Board of Auditors has reviewed the operations of the Fund of the United 

Nations Environment Programme (UNEP) at the headquarters in Nairobi and its six 
regional oGces. The Board has also audited the financial statements of the Fund of 
UNEP for the period from 1 January 2002 to 3 1 December 2003. 

The Board’s main findings are as follows: 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

Unliquidated obligations in the amount of $1.08 million pertaining to the 
biennium ended 3 1 December 2001 were still outstanding as at 3 1 December 2003; 

Travel advances granted during the years 2001 and 2002 in an aggregate 
amount of $227,226 remained unliquidated as at 31 December 2003; 

Some $56.04 million of advances to implementing partners remained 
unliquidated as at 31 December 2003, despite completion or near completion of 
projects financed; 

Non-expendable property which had been approved by the local Property 
Survcy Board was not discloscd in thc notcs to thc financial statcmcnts as “pcnding 
write-off ’. 

The Board made recommendations to establish and review obligations in 
accordance with the United Nations regulations; recover outstanding advances paid 
to staff members and “other persons”; enforce the terms of agreement in respect of 
the timely liquidation of the advances to implementing agencies; and disclose in the 
notes to the financial statements the amount of non-expendable property “pending 
write-off’. 

A list of the Board’s recommendations is provided in paragraph 9 of the present 

(d) 

report. 

2 
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A. Introduction 

1. The Board of Auditors has audited the financial statements and reviewed the 
operations of the United Nations Environment Programme (UNEP) for the period 
from 1 January 2002 to 31 December 2003, in accordance with General Assembly 
resolution 74 (I) of 7 December 1946 and article XIV of the Financial Rules of 
UNEP. The audit has been conducted in conformity with article VII of the Financial 
Regulations and Rules of the United Nations and the annex thereto, the common 
auditing standards of the Panel of External Auditors of the United Nations, the 
specialized agencies and the Inteniational Atomic Energy Agency and the 
lntemational Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that the Board plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance as to whether the financial 
statements are free of material misstatement. 

2. The audit was conducted primarily to enable the Board to form an opinion as 
to whether the expenditures recorded in the financial statements for the period from 
1 January 2002 lo 31 December 2003 had been incurred for the purposes approved 
by the General Assembly; whether income and expenditures had been properly 
classified and recorded in accordance with the Financial Regulations and Rules; and 
whether the financial statements of UNEP presented fairly the financial position as 
at 31 December 2003 and the results of its operations for the period then ended. The 
audit included a general review of financial systems and internal controls and a test 
examination of the accounting records and other supporting evidence to the extent 
the Board considered necessary to form an opinion on the financial statements. 

3. In addition to the audit of the accounts and financial transactions, the Board 
carried out reviews under United Nations financial regulation 7.5. The reviews 
included the efficiency of the internal financial controls, programme management 
and, in general, the administration and management of UNEP. The audit was carried 
out at UNEP headquarters in Nairobi and at the six regional offices, for Europe, 
Asia and the Pacific, Latin America and the Caribbean, West Asia, Africa and North 
America. 

4. The Board continued its practice of reporting the results of specific audits to 
the Administration through management letters containing observations and 
recommendations. The practice allowed an ongoing dialogue with the 
Administration. 

5 .  The present report covers matters which, in the opinion of the Board, should 
be brought to the attention of the General Assembly. The Board’s observations and 
conclusions were discussed with the Administration, whose views have been 
appropriately reflected in the report. 

6. A summary of the Board’s main recommendations is provided in paragraph 9 
below. The detailed fiiidiiigs and rccoiiiiiieiidatioiis are reported in paragraphs 1 1 
to 75. 

3 
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1. Previous recommendations not fully implemented 

Biennium ended 31 December 1999’ 

7. In accordance with section A, paragraph 7, of General Assembly resolution 
51/225 of 3 April 1997, the Board has reviewed measures taken by the 
Administration to implement the recommendations made in its report for the 
biennium ended 31 December 1999. The Board noted that of the five 
recommendations, four (80 per cent) were fully implemented. The remaining 
recommendation (20 per cent), which was under implementation, ertained to 
inactive projects which were still open as at 31 December 1999.’ The same 
recommendation was reiterated in the report of the Board for the biennium 
2000-2001.3 As at 31 December 2003 however, only 54 of the 106 inactive projects 
as at 3 1 December 2001 remained open. 

Biennium ended 31 December 20014 

8. In accordance with General Assembly resolution 48/216 B of 23 December 
1993, the Board also reviewed the measures taken by the Administration to 
implement the recommendations made in its report for the biennium ended 
3 1 December 2001. Details of the action taken and the comments of the Board are 
included in the report and have been summarized in the annex to the present chapter. 
Out of a total of eight recommendations, five (63 per cent) were implemented and 
thiee (37 per cent) were under implementation. 

2. Main recommendations 

9. The Board’s main recommendations are that the Administration: 

(a) Establish and review obligations in  accordance with financial rules 
105.7 and 105.9 and the United Nations system accounting standards (para. 23 
below); 

(b) Recover through payroll deductions, advances pertaining to  staff 
members and take immediate action to account properly for advances paid to 
“other persons” (para. 36 below); 

(c) Enforce the terms of agreement in  respect of the timely liquidation of 
advances to implementing agencies (para. 39 below); and 

(d) Disclose in  the notes to the financial statements the amount of non- 

The Board’s other recommendations are presented in paragraphs 46, 48, 51, 

expendable property “pending write-offs” (para. 42 below). 

10. 
55, 60, 62, 68, 70, and 74. 

’ See Official Records of the General AssGmbIy, FQ??-Jfth Session, Supplement No.  5F 

2 Ibid., para. 25. 
3 Oflicial Records ofthe General Assembly, Fifty-seventh Session, Supplement No. 5F 

(A/55/5lAdd.6), chap. 11. 

(A/57/5/Add.6), chap. 11, para. 44. 
See Official Records of the General Assembly, Fifty-seventh Session. Supplement No. 5F  
(A15715lAdd.6). chap. 11. 

4 
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B. Financial issues 

1. Financial overview 

11. The financial statements of UNEP cover the major funds - the Environment 
Fund, general trust funds, the Multilateral Fund for the Implementation of the 
Montreal Protocol on Substances that Deplete the Ozone Layer, Technical 
Cooperation Trust Funds and other trust funds. Table 1 below shows the key 
financial figures for the bienniums 2000-2001 and 2002-2003. 

Table I 
Key financial figures of the funds of the United Nations Environment Programme (all funds summary) 
for the bienninms 2000-2001 and 2002-2003 
(Thousands of United States dollars) 

Technical Junior Special Accounf 
tienerd wwt Cooperation l m t  Pmfe-wwnal for w a r n m e  Earmarked 

Environment Fwd f u h  F"fId.3 rncers Support Cons contributions Other 

2 m  2002- 2 m  2002- 2000- 2002- 2000- 2002- 2000- 2002- 2000- 2002- 2000- 2002- 
2001 2W3 2001 2003 2001 2003 2WI 2003 2001 2003 2001 2003 2001 2003 

Total income 
Total 
expenditures 
Total assets 

Total liabilities 

fund balances 

Major accounts 

Voluntary 
contributions 

Staff and other 
personnel costs 

Cash and term 
deposits 
Voluntary 
Pledges 
receivable 

Inter-fund 
receivable 
Inter-Cund 
payable 
Reserve for 
obligations 
Cum u 1 at i v e 
surplus 

Reserves and 

95 097 98 787 100568 93 169 109926 170 138 5 189 4846 14262 I9 244 25425 53460 1745 I803 

106334 109966 76090 101 765 68468 116664 5079 5287 16378 16676 18661 39209 1487 2026 
57815 40532 114095 96858 92831 152 588 4059 3 322 4219 6902 20023 38246 2619 2 134 

33049 23833 27388 22432 25348 36213 554 539 560 I351 4204 7621 254 178 

24766 16699 86707 74426 67483 116375 3505 2783 3659 5551 I5 819 30625 2365 956 

84742 95 868 93950 87024 105219 161776 4866 4583 - 24752 53037 I391 

49054 63309 34 I57 47441 21 928 37887 4432 4601 14260 15685 4448 8818 137 

501 

342 

33916 7335 83211 70331 72258 117 122 3015 3317 I702 6881 14431 30720 I789 1698 

2038 537 21 148 18039 - 491 - 916 2739 

1138021291  4341 221 3523 137 1011 3 2510 ~ I622 1857 793 433 

- 14567 7421 13221 23510 341 264 ~ 107 195 463 80 41 

13620 9603 8276 I I  142 9473 8446 196 197 452 983 3482 4685 155 123 

14766 6699 86707 74426 67483 116375 3505 2783 I659 3 551 15 819 30625 860 413 

12. In terms of the results of operations for the biennium 2002-2003, the 
Environment Fund reported a total income of $98.79 million against expenditures of 
$109.97 million, showing a net shortfall of $11.18 million (11 per cent), as 
compared with a net shortfall of income over expenditures of $ 1  1.23 million in the 

5 
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biennium 2000-2001. Voluntary contributions increased from $84.74 million in the 
biennium 2000-2001 to $95.87 million (13 per cent) in the biennium 2002-2003. 

13. The ycrioriil trust funds showed a shortfall of income relative to expenditure of 
$8.59 million for the biennium 2002-2003, compared to a net excess of $24.48 
million for 2000-2001. This was brought about by the decrease in total income from 
$100.57 million in 2000-2001 to $93.17 million in 2002-2003 (7.37 per cent) and an 
increase in expenditures of $25.67 million (34 per cent) over the 2000-2001 
expenditures of $76.09 million. 

14. The total income reported in the biennium 2002-2003 under the Technical 
Cooperation Trust Funds increased to $170.14 million, from $109.92 million in the 
previous biennium. This included a significant increase of $59.5 million (56.6 per 
cent) in voluntary contributions, from $105.2 million in the biennium 2000-2001 to 
$164.8 million in the current biennium. For both bienniums, the reported income 
sufficiently covered the expenditures; and for the biennium 2002-2003, the reported 
excess of income over expenditures amounted to $53.47 million. 

15. The Multilateral Fund (table 2) reported a net excess of income over 
expenditures of $16.15 million for the biennium 2002-2003, compared with a net 
shortfall of income relative to expenditures of $32.24 million for the hiennium 
2000-2001. Voluntary contributions increased by $6.1 million, from $277.7 million 
in 2000-2001 to $283.8 million in 2002-2003 (2.2 per cent). Advances to 
implementing partners showed a decrease of 11 per cent, from $217.07 million in 
2000-2001 to $193.00 million in 2002-2003. 

Table 2 
Key financial figures of the United Nations Environment Programme 
(Multilateral Fund) for the bienniums 2000-2001 and 2002-2003 
(Thousands of United States dollars) 

Total income 
Total expenditures 

Total assets 

Total liabilities 

Reserves and fund balances 

Major accounts 
Voluntary contributions 

Staff and other personnel costs 
Cash and term deposits 

321 212 
353 454 

548 710 
2 372 

546 337 

~~ 

314 569 
298 414 

564 515 
I825 

562 689 

211 720 283 822 

3 849 5 064 
96 205 73 5 3 1  

Voluntary pledges receivable 139 764 163 561 
Inter-fund receivable 7 211 

Reserve for obligations 170 3 54 

Inter-fund payable 214 

Cumulative surplus 546 337 562 689 

6 
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Programme support cost 

16. The Board reviewed the programme support income from the Multilateral 
Fund to dctcrminc whcthcr thc ratc chargcd was adequate to recover the 
administrative and technical costs in carrying out projects/activities under the Fund. 
UNEP is both an implementing agency and a treasurer of the Multilateral Fund. 

17. , I'he Administration informed the Board that, since 1991, UNEP had been 
performing the function of treasurer on a pro bono basis. Over the past 12 years, the 
treasury functions had become more complex. As the Multilateral Fund became 
larger, the Administration introduccd a contribution mcchanism employing 
innovative and sophisticated financial instruments and methods. These factors had 
contributed to the workload of UNEP/the United Nations Office at Nairobi well 
heyond the normal operations of a United Nations trust fund. UNEP had had to 
deploy additional human resources in order to fulfil its role as treasurer. The total 
resources of the Multilateral Fund were 64 per cent more than the combined amount 
of all other funds being managed by UNEP. The Administration informed the Board 
that, starting in September 2003, it had been paid $301,000 annually for one year of 
treasury services, following a request of the Executive Director to the Chairman of 
the Executive Committee of the Multilateral Fund. Further, the Administration 
informed the Board that, in April 2004, the fee for services had been increased to 
$500,000 annually for a period of five years. 

18. Most projects allocated to UNEP in its capacity as an implementing agency 
were of low value (up to $50,000 per project) and rather labour intensive. The 
overhead costs of UNEP tended to be comparatively high and in most instances 
exceeded the standard United Nations programme support charge of 13 per cent. 
The costs of providing administrative services for these small projects were 
proportionately much higher than those incurred on a large project. The programme 
support cost approved by the Executive Committee amounted to $428,116, or 8 per 
cent of total project cost of $5,351,450. The Administration informed the Board that 
the programme support cost would be considered by the Executive Committee at its 
43rd meeting in July 2004. 

United Nations system accounting standards 

19. The Board assessed the extent to which the financial statements of UNEP for 
the biennium 2002-2003 conformed to the United Nations system accounting 
standards. The review indicated that the financial statements were consistent with 
the standards except that: (a) unliquidated obligations aggregating to $1.08 million 
pertaining to the biennium ended 31 December 2001 still remained on the books as 
at 31 December 2003 (paras. 20-21); (b) Multilateral Fund expenditures of $20.3 
million incurred in respect of the period 1991-2001 were reported in the current 
biennium, instead of as prior-period adjustments (paras. 25-26); (c) fund transfers 
from the Multilateral Fund aggregating to $4 million were recorded in the Technical 
Cooperation Trust Fund as income in the current biennium, instead of as prior- 
period adjustments (paras. 27-28); and (d) voluntary pledges receivable amounting 
to $86.3 million were lung outscanding (paras. 30-32). 

2. 

Unliquidated obligations 
20. Unliquidated obligations aggregating to $1.08 million pertaining to the 
biennium ended 31 December 2001 still remained on the books as at 31 December 

7 
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2003. Of this amount, a total of $565,258 was earmarked for various projects for 
which no charges had been made since the obligations were established. 

21. Thc Administrntion informed the Board that it was making progress in closing 
unliquidated obligations relating to prior financial periods. 

22. The Board noted that UNEP had raised obligations in 2003 totalling $212,708, 
although the corresponding purchase orders were only approved in 2004. The Board 
was concerned that inappropriate obligating documents were raised simply to 
reserve funds at year-end. 

23. The Administration agreed with the Board’s recommendation that it 
establish and review obligations in accordance with financial rules 105.7 and 
105.9 and the United Nations system accounting standards. 

Prior-period adjustments 

24. United Nations Financial Rule 106.3 provides that “unless otherwise directed 
by the Under-Secretary-General for Management or by the particular terms 
governing the operations of a trust fund or a special account, all financial 
transactions shall be recorded in the accounts on an accrual basis in compliance with 
the United Nations system accounting standards”. 

25. An amount of $20.03 million, out of the total of $290.17 million incurred in 
expenditures for the biennium 2002-2003, under the Multilateral Fund for the 
Implementation of the Montreal Protocol on Substances that Deplete the Ozone 
Layer was related to adjustment made in respect of the period 1991-2001. The 
adjustment was a result of reconciliation of the records maintained by UNEP and the 
Fund’s secretarial. UNEP recorded this adjustinorit as experidilure relating to the 
current biennium instead of reflecting it as prior period adjustment. 

26. The adjustment was explained in a footnote to the financial statements of the 
Multilateral Fund which states that “for easy monitoring of the expenditures 
reported by the major implementing agencies, the Treasurer adopted the practice of 
recording any changes reported by these agencies against previous period(s) 
expenditures, as part of the current period transactions”. 

27. UNEP made an adjustment, as at 31 December 2002, in the revenue account 
under the Technical Cooperation Trust Fund for “UNEP implementation of the 
Multilateral Fund activities” (Fund IML) amounting to $1.8 million. The adjustment 
pertained to the fund transfer from the Multilateral Fund to Fund IML, approved by 
the Executive Committee during its 23rd meeting, that should have been taken up in 
1998. The Administration informed the Board that this amount was erroneously 
posted in the books of the Trust Fund for the Montreal Protocol on Substances that 
Deplete the Ozone Layer (Fund MPL). The adjustment made, however, was credited 
to the income account in 2002, instead of being recorded as prior-period adjustment. 

28. Similarly, a fund transfer from the Multilateral Fund to Fund IML, amounting 
to $2.2 million, approved by the Executive Committee in 2001 was recorded as 
incornc in 2002, instcad of prior-pcriod adjustmcnt. 

29. The Administration informed thc Board that there had been no change in the 
way these expenditures relating to previous years had been recorded in the past. The 
Administration agreed, however, to seek approval of this practice from the 
Executive Committee. 
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Voluntary pledges receivable 

30. Voluntary pledges amounting to $86.3 million and $.04 million from 
convention and non-convention sources, respectivcly, wcrc long outstanding. Thcy 
included a pledge receivable pertaining to the Multilateral Fund of $73.07 million 
which had been outstanding for more than five years. 

31. Paragraph 33 of the United Nations system accounting standards provides, 
among other things, that “in the interest of prudent financial management, provision 
may be made as appropriate where the collection of the income so recognized is 
considered doubtful. In spccific cascs, whcre the pledge is deemed uncollectihle, 
write-off action will be required.” 

32. The Administration informed the Board that the amount of $86.3 million 
pertained to pledges for trust funds which involved the share of a party or parties for 
a budget convention that had been approved by Governments. That amount would 
be written off with the approval of the Conference of Parties concerned. Long- 
outstanding non-oonvcntion pledges of f.04 million would he forwarded to the 
Executive Director for write-off. The Administration informed the Board that it had 
already taken action on the matter. 

Travel 

33. Travel advances granted during the years 2001 and 2002 in an aggregate 
amount of $227,226 remained unliquidated as at 31 December 2003. Similarly, 
travel advances granted in 2003 totalling $168,976 remained unliquidated as at 
31 December 2003, although the travel had been completed for periods ranging 
from one month to five months. 

34. Section 1 1 . 1  of administrative instruction ST/AI/2000/20 of 22 December 
2000 provides that staff members shall, within two calendar weeks after completion 
of travel, submit a completed travel reimbursement claim. The Board, however, 
noted that UNEP, in line with a Memorandum by the Chief of the Division of 
Administrative Services of the United Nations Office at Nairobi, had permitted an 
extension of up to 60 days in order to give staff members additional time to 
complete their travel claims. Failure to account for the advance within the extended 
period would result in recovery without prior notice. 

35. As at 25 March 2004, travel advances amounting to $140,046 had been 
outstanding for more than 20 months. Of this amount, $57,238 (41 per cent) 
pertained to staff members, while $82,208 pertained to “other persons”. The Board 
is concerned about the recoverability of advances due from “other persons”, since 
their assignment with the United Nations is temporary in nature. 

36. The Administration agreed with the Board’s recommendation that it 
recover, through payroll deductions, advances pertaining to staff members and 
that it take immediate action to account properly for advances paid to “other 
persons”. 

Advances to implementing agencies 

37. Under the terms of agreement, UNEP grants advances to implementing 
agencies. The same agreement provides that implementing agencies should report 
their expenditures to UNEP quarterly, and annually by 3 1 January. 
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38. The Board noted that, as at 31 December 2003, some $56.04 million of these 
advances remained unliquidated, despite completion or near completion of the 
projects financed. For instance, out of the advances amounting to $17.02 million 
made in September 2001 to the United Nations Development Programme (UNDP) 
from the Multilateral Fund, only $6.11 million had been liquidated. Another 
advance was granted to UNDP in January 2002 in the amount of $12.49 million, but, 
as at 3 1 December 2003, no liquidation had been made. Similarly, as at the date of 
audit, the World Bank had not liquidated advances amounting to $22.79 million 
made to it in April 2002. 

39. The  Administration agreed with the Board’s recommendation that it 
enforce the terms of agreement in respect of the timely liquidation of the 
advances to implementing agencies. 

Presentation and disclosure of financial statements 

40. In accordance with paragraph 12 of General Assembly resolution W220  A, 
the Board of Auditors, in conjunction with the Secretary-General and the executive 
heads of the funds and programmes of the United Nations, continued to evaluate 
what financial information should be presented in annexes to the statements in 
accordance with the United Nations system accounting standards. 

41. The notes to the 2002-2003 financial statements did not include disclosure on 
non-expendable property “pending write-offs”, amounting to $1.2 million, which 
had been approved by the Local Property Survey Board for disposal. 

42. The Administration agreed with the Board’s recommendation that it 
disclose in the notes to the financial statements the amount of non-expendable 
property “pending write-off“. The Administration informed the Board that it 
would take steps to ensure that non-expendable property was correctly 
categorized in future financial statements. 

3. 

4. Financial management and control 

43. The UNEP Regional Office for Europe rents its office premises at the 
International Environment House in Geneva from a local landlord. The arrangement 
is covered by a rental contract dated 3 July 1998, which has been amended over the 
past three years. 

44. The Regional Office for Europe represented the other UNEP agencies and 
offices occupying the premises. The landlord expressed its wish to have one 
contracting party in the building management negotiations. 

45. The rent was agreed at $332,044 annually, payable at the rate of $82,770 every 
quarter. The proportionate share for the UNEP Regional Office for Europe for the 
first and second quarters of 2002 was only $31.309. However, the amount obligated 
for the period was $121,000, to accommodate the proportionate rent of the other 
offices. 

46. The Administratfun agreed with the Buard’s recomrnendatluu that  it 
promptly allocate and recover the charges in respect of rents paid by the UNEP 
Regional Office for Europe on behalf of the other offices. The Administration 
informed the Board that it had already requested the other office in the 
building to obligate annually the necessary funds for rental charges. 

10 
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47. At the UNEP Regional Office for West Asia, disbursement vouchers were not 
prepared and approved in respect of petty cash expenses. This was not in keeping 
with the established guidelines on the use of the petty cash fund, which require that 
all payments must be supported by disbursement vouchers duly signed by the 
appropriate certifying officer and must be supported by available receipts. 

48. The Administration informed the Board that it has already established a 
mechanism to comply with the established guidelines on the maintenance of the 
petty cash fund. 

49. Unitcd Nations financial rule 105.4 provides that “all commitments, 
obligations, and expenditures require at least two authorizing signatures, in either 
conventional or electronic form. All commitments, obligations, and expenditures 
must first be signed (‘certified’) by duly designated certifying officers (rule 105.5). 
Following certification, duly designated approving officers (rule 105.6) must then 
sign to ‘approve’ the establishment of obligations and the recording of expenditures 
in the accounts and the processing of payments”. 

50. In the UNEP Regional Office for North America, the Regional Director both 
certifies and approves the financial transaction, although authority was only granted 
to the Director to sign as certifying officer. In these circumstances, there is 
inadequate segregation of duties, since the same person performs the functions of 
both certifying and approving officer. 

51. The Administration agreed with the Board’s recommendation and has 
confirmed (i) the delegation of authority to the Regional Director of the UNEP 
Regional Office for North America to  sign as approving officer and for the 
Deputy Regional Director to sign as alternate approving officer; and (ii) the 
appointment of the Administrative Assistant as the certifying officer for the 
Regional Office for North America. 

5. Write-off of receivables 

52. The Administration reported the write-off of accounts receivable amounting to 
$4.698.62 for the biennium 2002-2003. 

6. Ex gratia payments 

53. 
during the biennium 2002-2003. 

The Administration informed the Board that no ex gratia payments were made 

C. Management issues 

1. Integrated Accounting and Budgeting System 

54. At the UNEP Regional Office for Latin America and the Caribbean, the 
Integrated Accounting and Budgeting System allowed different levels of access for 
each individual. Nevertheless, all personnel in the Administration Division could 
access all the system menu/modules. This has created the risk of data manipulation. 

55. The Administration agreed with the Board’s recommendation that it 
formulate and enforce guidelines to enhance security with regard to access to 
the Integrated Accounting and Budgeting System, in order to maintain data 
integrity. 

11 
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2. Results-based budgeting 

56. The concept of results-based budgeting is aimed at strengthening the existing 
programme planning, budgcting, and evaluation framework and processes of United 
Nations agencies. 

57. Results-based budgeting requires that, in the implementation of the 
programmelmandates of every United Nations agency, the objectives, expected 
accomplishment, indicators of achievement, external factors and outputs be clearly 
defined. The expected results should be specific and measurable, attainable and 
rcalistic, timc-bascd and related to the objectives. 

58. The work plan of the UNEP Regional Office for North America contained 
expected accomplishments which did not correspond to the objectives of that 
regional office; most of the activities were not time-bound; and performance 
indicators were not defined. 

59. The Administration informed the Board that some of the staff of the Regional 
Office for North America had undertaken training on results-based budgeting. 
However, the nature of the core mandate of the regional office had often made it 
difficult for them to translate all activities into precise, measurable outputs. 

60. The Administration agreed with the Board's recommendation that it fully 
integrate the requirements of results-based budgeting in the preparation of 
future work plans. 

3. Non-expendable property 

61. At UNEP headquarters, the summary statement of inventory showed a closing 
value of $10,211,513 as at 31 December 2003. This did not reconcile with the 
physical inventory report, which reflected a closing value of $974,157, resulting in a 
discrepancy of $9,237,356. The discrepancy was due to the lack of financial value 
of most of the items in the inventory report. 

62. The Administration agreed with the Board's recommendation that it 
update the property and inventory control records, with emphasis on the 
financial value of each item, and reconcile these records with the summary 
statement of inventory. 

4. Consultancy services 

63. During its interim audits conducted in the biennium 2002-2003, the Board 
raised certain issues with the Administration in respect of consultancy services. 

64. At the Regional Office for Europe, there were six consultancy contracts in 
which time frames to accomplish each task, including output and delivery dates, 
were not clearly defined, contrary to administrative instruction (ST/AI/1999/7), 
which states that the terms of reference shall include tangible and measurable 
outputs of the work assignment, realistic delivery dates and details as to how work 
must be delivered. 

65. In three contracts reviewed, the instalment payments were not supported with 
progress accomplishment reports on the work assignment, as required. Without the 
progress accomplishment repnrts, there was no basis to confirm that work performed 
by the consultant was commensurate with the amount paid. 
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66. All consultants covered by the Board’s review were rated “excellent”, despite 
delays in the delivery of outputs in two cases. The Administration explained that it 
rated the quality of the final output and not the process to produce the output. The 
Administration agreed, however, that delays should have been taken into account in 
the evaluation of the consultants’ performance. 

67. During the biennium 2002-2003, UNEP headquarters signed 27 contracts after 
the effective date. Also in 17 instances the contracts were not signed by either 
contracting party. This was contrary to paragraph 15 of administrative instruction 
STIAI1296 and paragraph 14 of administrative instruction STlAIl295, both dated 
19November 1982, which provide that no individual may commence work as a 
consultantlindividual contractor until the contract or agreement has been duly 
approved and signed on behalf of both the United Nations and the individual in 
question. The Board was concerned that payments were made to consultants without 
the required approval or evidence that the consultants had agreed to the terms o f  the 
contract. 

68. The Administration agreed with the Board’s recommendation that it 
(i) establish delivery dates on consultancy contracts; (ii) require consultants to 
submit progress reports and proof of accomplishments on completed phases as 
the basis for determining the amount to be paid; and (lii) ensure that both 
parties sign contracts prior to the effective dates. 

Contribution from donor countries 

69. An amount of $970,126 was earmarked for the Nairobi River Basin project, 
phase 11, of the UNEP Regional Office for Africa. The costing of the project took 
into consideration a pledge of $200,000 from a donor, despite the abseiwc or a 
written commitment. This was not consistent with the condition approved by the 
UNEP Governing Council that estimates of future resources should take into 
account contributions formally pledged, or paid by supporting organizations and 
non-government sources. In view of the insufficiency of funds, some of the 
programmed deliverables were not realized. 

70. The Admlnlstration agreed with the Board’s recommendation that it 
ensure that firm commitments from interested contributors are  obtained before 
a project is started. 

5. Staff training 

71. The Board reviewed the staff training at UNEP and was pleased to note that 
the Administration had taken steps to develop a policy, which would be reviewcd by 
the Training Steering Committee by June 2004. 

6. Information and communication technology 

72. Because of the broad range and geographical breadth of its activities, the 
UNEP Regional Office for Asia and the Pacific recognized that it had to develop its 
idurination and cunirnunication technology (ICT) plans and projects within the 
common framework to meet its specific needs. The Regional Office relies on the 
Economic and Social Commission for Asia and the Pacific (ESCAP) and the United 
Nations Office at Nairobi for information and communication technology support. 
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73. The UNEP Regional Office for Asia and the Pacific had no internal 
information and communication technology group to ensure that its office strategies 
were aligned with its overall business requirements. Also, it had no policy on the 
acquisition and maintenance of information technology hardware. Out of 42 
personal computers, one third was declared obsolete and was already with the 
Property Unit for disposal. 

74. The Board recommends that the Administration develop and implement: 
(i) an information and communication technology strategic policy; and 
(ii) policies on the acquisition and maintenance of information and 
communication technology. The Administration informed the Board that the 
recommendation would be implemented in the context of the Office of Internal 
Oversight Services (010s) audit report on UNEP information technology 
management . 

7. Cases of fraud and presumptive fraud 

75. The Administration reported that no fraud or presumptive fraud had been 
committed during the biennium. 

D. Acknowledgement 

76. The Board wishes to express its appreciation for the cooperation and assistance 
extended to the auditors by the Executive Director, his officers and members of their 
staff. 

(Signed) Shauket A. Fakie 
Auditor-General, Republic of South Africa 

(Signed) Guillermo N. Caraguc 
Chairman, Philippine Commission on Audit 

(Signed) Franeois Logerot 
First President, Court of Accounts, France 

9 July 2004 

Note: The members of the Board of Auditors have signed only the original English 
version of the report. 
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Annex 
Summary of status of implementation of recommendations for the 
biennium 2000-2001" 

Topic Implemented Under implementation Not implemented Total 

Investment in the cash pool para. 21 1 

Bank reconciliation para. 25 1 

Programme management 
Approval of projects 

para. 36 
para. 41 

Closure of inactive projects p". 44 1 

Environment issues para. 48 1 

Administrative arrangement with the 
United Nations Office at Geneva para. 50 1 
Regional office financial monitoring 

para. 53 1 and reporting 
Total 
Number 5 3 0 8 
Percentage 63 37 0 100 

- 

' See Oficial Records of the General Assembly, Fib-seventh Session, Supplement No. SF (A/57/5/Add.6), chap. 11. 
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Chapter I11 
Audit opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements. comprising 
statements I to XIV of the United Nations Environment Programme; schedules 3.1, 
4.1 to 4.3, 5.1 and 6.1; and the supporting notes for the biennium from 1 January 
2002 to 31 December 2003. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Executive Director. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial 
statements based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the common auditing standards of 
the Panel of External Auditors of the United Nations, the specialized agencies and 
the International Atomic Energy Agency and with the International Standards on 
Auditing. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain 
reasonable assurance as to whether the financial statements are free of material 
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis and as considered by the 
Board of Auditors to be necessary in the circumstances, evidence supporting the 
amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing 
the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by the Executive 
Diiectoi, as well as an evaluation of the overall financial statcmcnt prcsentation. We 
believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for the audit opinion. 

In our opinion, these financial statements present fairly, in all material 
respects, the financial position as at 3 1 December 2003 and the results of operations 
and cash flows for the period then ended, in accordance with the United Nations 
Environment Programme stated accounting policies, set out in note 2 to the financial 
state~ncnts, which were applied on a basis consistcnt with that of the preceding 
financial period. 

Furthermore, in our opinion, the transactions of the United Nations 
bnvironment Programme that have come to our notice or that we have tested as part 
of our audit have been, in all significant respects, in accordance with the Financial 
Regulations and legislative authority. 

In accordance with article VII of the Financial Regulations, we have also 
issued a long-form report on our audit of the financial statements of the United 
Nations Environment Programme. 

(Signed) Shauket A. Fakie 
Auditor-General, Republic of South Africa 

(Signed) Guillermo N. Carague 
Chairman, Philippine Commission on Audit 

(Signed) Franpois Logerot 
First President, Court o f  Accounts, France 

9 July 2004 

Note: The members of the Board of Auditors have signed only the original English 
version of the audit opinion. 
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Chapter IV 
Certification of the financial statements 

31 March 2004 

I certify that the appended financial statements of the United Nations 
Environment Programmc, including the statements of the associated trust funds and 
other related accounts, numbered I to XIV are correct. 

(Signed) tilaus TOpfer 
Executive Director 

United Nations Environment Programme 
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Chapter V 
Financial statements for the biennium ended 31 December 2003 
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Tramafar hod(@) Unhd NatKns OfRCe At Nalmbi and dher funds 
Prlw pemd adlustments Noie 9 (442 798) (390) 

988 447 

Net excessl(shdaW) of income over axpendilute (10634995) (11 238728) 
RonsKmal savinna on or Cancsilabn of prior W s '  oblaabons 2 569 382 1731 700 
~esaves and tund rnanees. ixoimins oi pnod 24 271 085 
Resew8s and fund balances. end of period 14 766 037 
Finandal resenms. begnnhg of period 10 000 ow 10o0o0w 
Furandai WNe8. end of Peroa 10 000 000 

14 788 037 
8 700 424 

10 000 000 

- 
Cash and term deposits 
interfund receivable 
Voluntary pledpes remlvable 
Other accmnts remivable 
Advances urovided M imDlementina wencies 

xh 3.1 7 335 229 33 915 822 
Note6 21 291 388 11 379 531 
Sch4.l 537 328 2 038 174 

Note 5 (a) 9 533 888 7 516 235 
1 148 319 2 408 843 _ _  

~efened Chalgas Me 5 (c) 687 352 558 la8 
Totalaueb 40 533 484 57 814 793 

!&b!!!m 
Other a m l s  payable 
Omer liabilil 
R- for o b l i o n s  

M e  5 (b) 1249216B 7 669 551 
1246 173 849 122 

Sch 4.2 9602503 13 620 184 

R n o m  and fund balanceq 
Financial reserves 10 m 000 10 000 000 
Cumulative surplus 6 700 424 14 766 037 

24 786 037 
57 614 793 

Total m e s  and fund balancss 
Total Ilabilii, resefves and hrnd b a l m  

18 700 424 
40 533 484 
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Schedule 4.1 

10000 
10 wo 
10 wo 
13 807 9 491 

ion wo 83 WO 
180 wo 

2 2w 
3om 

1 000 wo 
Bw 

2m 
I 200 
1 zw 

151 ?43 
2722 
2 157 
1 5 0  

12 wo 
12W 1203 

30 WO 
10 wo 
97 153 
e4wo 

15Mo 

12 000 

I 275 454 

1ZW 

4713440 
4 ru 743 

28 950 18 575 
1 2 w  

38 226 
1200 

600 
10 2w 

2W000 
800 

3 717 483 
1W 1W 100 

23 484 - 23484 23 484 
(8 377) 

13 379 133 
I8 3771 

. 13379133 . 13370133 
11 9 7 5 ~ 0  . 11975CQo 11 975 wo 

UZtdUtSM 4 475 4 475 4 475 
V8M)I"8II 39 102 39 102 
Vmt Nam 10 040 - 10040 10 040 
Y a m  5 436 5436 5 438 

2 038 174 MSE 95887976 12607 95880583 52 144 97 475 9~ ur 328 

Unnald Plednea for2002 -2003 and PriorYeam 

W*in one year 432 938 
One vear and over 104 390 

Totill 637 328 
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Environment Fund 

-inp z)wowo 23wOWO z i4zzmo i s n ~  i ~ n 4 ~ o  
P- developmsnt md lllw 13025000 13925000 13850724 274 278 274 278 
porc/~mplem- 8000wD 8 w o w o  7245830 754 170 754 170 
Tsdnoloey. lndrstry and emnomla 21 950000 21 950000 21 378 071 (28 071) (28 071) 
RsgioW POW. p(pnniw end 21 025 000 21 OZ5000 21 154 788 (128788) (128788) 
EnuhnmonWcrmvonliau 6 876 000 6 975 O W  o 38s 4e7 ao 305 EM533 
Commumendpublic- 5725000 5 725 Ow 5515445 im ssi 179 555 

Tolal Fund programme a c b v ~  1w000000 i w ~ ~  m7m905 3213095 3213095 
TOW Fund progmme msuve 
a- JooDwo 500(1m 2022.427 2077 51'3 2011573 

Sublo(al (Note 5 (d)) 105OWOOO 1D5wowo 69708332 5280688 5 2 9 o w  

suppal budget (sdledule 4.3) 14 870 200 11803500 10255880 4820220 1 6 4 s  

Toial Emlmrment Fund 1 19 876 200 1168035W 108885312 9810888 6838188 

* indude 
Unliquidated obligations 

Tdel Flnd prooramme acUvks 
Total Fund programme resewe zctivlb 
S u W  budgel (Sdledule 4.3) 

Tow punnt bkmium 

8363811 
534 822 
301 833 

9200486 
402 037 

9eo25a3 

Zb 
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SchadUlO 4.3 

Environment Fund 
S u m  budget 

Summary of appmpdstiont. allccabona lasued, expenditures incurd and unaxpendad W n w  of clppmpristionr and 
allc4mnb 

for the biefmium 2002-2003 ended 31 Decemtm r m 3  

( U n W  States dokra) 

Une+mded Unsqmded 
Appmpriationa Allocalionrhswd Expandllutw appmpruUm alocatiansfar 

Object of expenditure for 2002-2003 for 2002 ~ 2003 for 2002 - 2003 for 2002-2003 2002 - 2003 

Staff and other personnel costa 10 748 OW 8 268 650 7 449 693 3 208 307 818 957 
ContnCtUal M W h S  880 000 846 150 BBB 571 22 428 (20 421) 
Travel 1118200 1 100 700 907 813 210 387 192 887 
o&itmg eqmnser 1 560 so0 1 239 700 848 730 711 770 390 970 
Acquisitions 560 500 448 300 183 173 377 327 265 127 

11903500 102559M) 4 620 220 1 847 520 Total 14 878 200 
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General TNst  Funds 

Combmsd r ~ q ~ n t o l  th- 
end Chanws In DU. EAL EBL EEL EGL ESL ETL FIL 
forth. hwni- $1 -.u*c 
m 
(United Slsl i  datbrs) - 
&Q!M 

Volunlly W ~ I b " *  s61.611e 5.1 2 182 271 099 118 215 003 302 115 343 2w 183 797 1M 982 

M~s~slll.aus i- 322 197 
I"ta,rartmmmo 34863 71 432 17 346 2218 I? 524 105 023 13964 l e n s  

2 539 8% 770 578 232 YO 2 218 319 639 448 223 177461 214 757 

stan anj ao.rpmnne wsw 412714 2.9 1 s  222 053 171 034 252 491 1504ll 
CO"V.aull "NIQ. 2- M3 45 us 185 435 5 wo 58 077 
T w e l  109 141 1 635 15 044 7 5% 25 9% 84 899 
0per.Lilg *rp.nws 483 053 34 038 26 201 5 2W 10 837 114415 

FcIIou~.htp~. gmnU and mnmPumnr 

Total lncain 

ACqYUllDnS 42 133 531 3 707 3 ( Y O  35 545 441 (2 221) 

Exusd(.hom.r) Of KDrm I".,..Pl"dh"m I 076 251 375 854 R79 9271 2 218 1170% €4 557 (47 24n (48 8371 
R d m d  10 Donom 
PmrpniOd adlusmnlr (1 117364) f174W) 

Nd arC8WShandl Of k- OWI .mendbn 
Pm-omI unng. m or ~1nc .U . Ik4  o( pnorpwads' 
Oblbllbnl 

(42 12:) 375 854 (179 8271 2 218 Il'O5B 79 151 ( 4 1  247) (48 837) 

092 YN 181 m 733 31Y 639 1408 544 183 229 247 821 

203 371 232 065 

M M m d  hupu 5 575 
T W (  IU.I 1 4 8 3 m  3832112 188 859 28 733 319819 1701 915 415 282 247 921 

Noh 0 17 MI 2 0  580 118930 10 380 1 Wli 

R a u m  IoroMgdmn 114 507 22832 632 6618 18208 u 1  

12 672 
%", P Y . M  

0lh.raWmlupmbk 9 441 4 178 26 087 
owr hMM. 

h l u n d  cndN 48 285 
TOUl Ilabdb, 141 5m a8 010 26 719 202 5ea 123 YI n 1 3  15 071 

cumumw.uymu. 1351 6W 3 881072 142 I40 28 733 111 050 1 578 M7 337 719 232 843 

Total IVbIM.', m"ws andhmd bahnus 1403 M8 3032 112 168 859 21 733 11b638 1701 915 41529 247 911 

- 
1M.I ns8N.s and fvnd Wnmr 1 351 W 3 W 0 7 2  142140 28735 117059 1 578 MI 357719 232 643 



GPL HLL IGL KAL LAL MCL ME1 MPL 

(Unlbd SUUI dolllo) mfuYn59 
&Q!m 

VC.h"!my conhbub". Sc+edi* 5.1 14489% ma18 1 429 384 10021 557 4 Pl 321 
1nUnrt hDrn 90 720 19 486 117 821 24 420 987 w( mo 241 
M ~ . D . I ~ O Y S  mmnm 10 14 Y D  87L 1 w 1  

T a i l  1- 1yOIYu 112 651 117 02 1 1 453 EM 10 389 YC 5 822 853 

ExmmWlQ 
89 430 5 647 782 2 970 223 

Con1mdU.l S9NiC.l 407 053 SB 722 2 248 805 111 521 
SUH and *her p M n d  WklI 

TmmI 172 807 5 034 735 481 298 512 
231 BB9 979 119779 224 803 1 975 YO 3 M5 879 

287 070 123 540 
mentno expenses 
AC4"iklX)". 

55 773 

SUUMnl x 112553 127 15571 48 253 I405 183 Ese 082 
TOUI Exwnmum 979 855 I rm . 136350 402 042 12288821 7 455 857 
~ x ~ s d s h + n f a l l o l  m m *  emf axwndbn H17 ow 11 1061 121 8881 117 621 1053 702 11 9102111 (1 833 2041 

F.lbmhtps. gnnU md cmlnhytr~~s 
Pmgnrnm womn CoN 

1452 593 1075 U 243 2 w9 8 227 2 320 1241791l 
1873 818 18 771 8 848 1 054 082 4 407 731 10 4M 925 

cash m a i m  d0~0ihs s.n.du.3.1 2317 108 207 094 8 148 I 148 812 4117158 8 717 533 

sched"l5.1 44 405 824 703 37MeM 
Inudund mF.imblm 

352 775 10292 22 049 744 002 84 115 
V o i u n w p M p l  muiwbb 

3 178 I1  115 
o v u r a w ~ n u  ms.trhh 

T a i l  assus 2809eal 321 748 8 848 I170MI 5869621 12 627 x17 
rm1.n.d Lharws 

293 845 81 958 398 873 $4 507 
i!!&!nm 

28 w5 1 w  204 M 977 
Inuhnd papbb NO(* 6 
O v I ~ r . ~ ~ ~ m u p . ~ a b k  H1 879 1 8w 

332 20018 780 527 1855 319 
OmsrUbrnr 

. .  2 228 88 039 
R I ~ N .  hr owomn 

Ta.1 m u e *  763 2e3 301 977 111 579 1281 800 2 143 442 

1873 818 19 772 6 848 I 054 082 4 407 731 10483925 
- 

1873 818 19 772 I M8 1054082 4 407 731 I0483825 
CUMIhIN. '"rph 

Tots1 I u b l i l .  D Y N . S  Md hnd m S  2668801 321 749 8 a48 l170BBl 5 889 121 12 827 987 
~ a a i  nsewes and fund b k n u s  

CIM 

Nola 8 

497 734 

239 050 
mdI 

W - 
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General TNSI Funds 

MSL PFL PNL POL PPL RCL SOL 

m.tema 

Schnduk 5.1 3 247 997 
203 288 I758 

828 889 
102014 

9 034 020 
483619 

3 703 489 
204 378 8 342 

5700 
16 

Midbmour Income 1131 
Tolal Inmm 3 451 263 I 751 732014 9517639 3 907 887 8 342 5 718 

Sun andothsrpmnndmmr 1 774 858 3 540819 1924855 
contranva1 Urrcll 981 718 109248 2110380 445 570 
Travel 177 099 97 539 223913 121 078 
owmm axpmnu. 851 889 283 394 1 808 383 1 484 358 

Faiiowahes. grams a d  conmbu~nr 
A C q Y l b " l  74 173 62 mi 44 163 

Pmpmmn wuuon msu Sblrmnl X 4M O M  63723 1018827 517898 
Tolal Elp.nabn 4 103 393 553 902 8 055 023 4518319 
Exceldrho#hU) Of lnmnU Wer wplMdRYr0 (852 130) 1 758 178 112 062 816 (810452) B 342 5 710 
Refund 10 h n  
Prior PMod I d ju rWnb  i98417) 1283711 1859 9 ~ 0 )  

N ~ I  ~IC.smm.m of in- ovrrrxpandilun 
Prnvlrjonll rvinpr on orc4nn.en 01 p k f  p.*dS' 
oblpationr 
RsSerYel a d  hmd WnS.,. b.gming Of wbd 2 926 431 27 813 1 577 010 5 800 898 3021284 84 029 
R . S ~ W M  a d  lvno balances, end of p . n ~  2 177 884 I755  152 5 803 532 2 410 832 90 371 5718 

iyblm. ..1r- 
&ss 

(7411 547) (27813) 178112 2 838 (010 452) 8 342 5 716 

. ... 
w w d  -4 of wYn. IuWWr. -and hmL 

scheauh 3.1 2 535 w9 I 502 335 7013382 2 547 841 90 371 5 718 
Nola 8 
SShaduI. 5.1 278 459 

54 038 
325 OW 
52 101 

87 588 
23 162 320 043 

D.1mWdch.ms 885 
Tola1 uuts  2 8.35 5w 1 880 124 7 I04 112 2 887 724 90 371 5711 

InUr7uundpay.W NoIe 8 108285 30 093 532 837 80 989 
~ . m o ~ n b p . y . b h  35 +0a 44 853 522730 123 180 
OlhrhtIIrw. 
R e s e w  toroblqMmn 502 828 50 226 238 827 242 733 
rnfmameais 43 OBO 7 988 

Tola1 luM0 ear 822 124 972 1 3W 580 450 892 

2 177 884 1 755 152 5 803 532 2 410 832 80 371 5710 
- 
CumuuGv. umkl' 
m a 1  RI.WU .nd fund balems 2 171 884 1 755 152 5 803 532 2 410 832 90 371 5 710 
Tettd Lab*Im, R-S and (*nd WWI 28855w 1 880 124 7 104 112 2 067 724 80 371 5 710 

L!@b&im 



General h s i  Funds 

VCL WAL WPL U L  2M? 2e(l 

(untied siattr dollan) 

Volunlrw mnt~bvlions Schedule 5.1 1 420 050 15000 711928 - 87024210 93 948 Be8 
I"l.ra*l mmm. 205 098 7 870 i 831 5 202 771 0 550 109 
Mscel laMo~~ Income 140 002 141 87 449 

715 057 - 93 189 122 100557528 

sia4 andother pusonnelcos~s 597 204 01 228 . 47440589 34 155 59) 
Co"1nnu.l SerYhOI  1c 000 . 14999505 10 528 887 
Travel 53 100 34 120 4 903 970 3305111 
OPCRI"( .xp.nse. 431 139 20 320 30 783 . 19058010 17 320 097 

Fellowhpr. & r M l s  and mntnhubnr 13 OQ 

Toll1 Incoma 1 033 0% 22 070 
&gmQ 

AsquiiiLni 70  W1 n 720 2 077 630 1 995 0gl 

PmgRrnrn8 wwon cam SPtenenl x 150 Loo 3 082 19170 . 11083109 0 689 709 
Tohl ExwndiWm 1 311 154 32 002 171C43 . 101 783733 70 ow 125 
ErussljrhoMW of hcom over .xPmdIum 322 742 18 324) 548014 - (05941111 24 477 401 

SSh.dYI. 3 1 2 MO W3 117455 e a ~ n 5 n  1800809 7 0 l M 9 Y  P 210 1c0 Cash a x  term deposm 
lnlllrfund mcmabb Nola 0 220 772 4341302 
V0l""bry p*eq.. rnWN1h Schadub 5 1 7% 7za . 18039115 21 147 7% 

DBfemdchamel 47 518 41 877 
Tots1 assels 3 0w 139 117455 669 858 1E00669 98057248 1 1 4 0 9 5 1 I I  

Inledund payrbk Nola 0 80 nm 19024 1051 010 7 420 E l 0  1 4 s W 0 1 1  
O l k  a-nh payable n 363 101220 2 071 a41 2 870 821 
0lh.r Imtikbel (5 1 8 0  
Reuws br ObWaUon 279 I24 22 305 . 11 141780 8 275 MI 
h f e m d  d N  23 825 100 051 1 7 9 5 w  1 574 3% 

TOPI IUb'hW 390 090 22 305 121 ou 3 BW 668 22 429 591 27JIEZ19 

5 210 741 95 080 540814 - 74427055 WlcmBBt Cvmvlaliva UI~IYS 
Told reaeurw1 and fund baUmr 3210 741 95 wo 548814 . 74427855 M 7 W  982 

Aa?.m 

aher  .CmY"ls rnUNab* 31 im 1 2 1 0 n a  5 353 533 

UBkWdw 

- 
TOW k b l N r ,  IMN.5 and bnd M U L  38W0SS 117 455 W9050 i~0oee.s  m m z a  1 1 4 0 9 ~ 1 8 1  

W W 
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wusmnta m -in 
unwpwg- W m '  2M2 12003 br Unpnid M s s  

Colkc.knSfu M m - 2 w ) n u i  k 2 0 0 2 - 2 W 3  
Pmmm awJm0fw.n 

assl1Janumv W a n d  pI.dpnlbr 
counhiesl Mpammon* . zw2 nuipb 2wz-2QO3 RsnwMl . 8  N s l m  luw. mn 

- 305064 305084 mM1 
Am 
calla- 
European union . 838055 836 055 8% 055 
Finland . 327893 327 693 321 W3 
Carmany 148770 140 no 140 770 
Luxembovrg - 207177 207177 a31177 

. i w 4 7 a  im 47.3 199476 
3m 4% 

m s y  
Swiherland - 391 454 . 301454 
AEL remi . 2415880 . 2415880 2 415 600 

AIWliU 2 w  ow 200 MI0 
75 75 

5om 
m a  
B m n  MOM) 
Botswana 1wWO 1M)WO 
Burkina Faso 486ia 46818 
0-di 25 OW 25 OW 

c a p  velds 25 OM) 25 m0 
CEnm A m n  Replbllc 25 WO 25 OOo 
Chad 26 OW 26 OW 
c-0. 25 WO 25 wo 

25 OW 25 WO 
l W m 0  

con00 
cote d1"oirn 1wWO 
Dem-bc Replblk ol the Cwgc 25 WO 25 WO 
qbam 25 WO 25 WO 

200 ow Mom 
25 WO 

Eglpl 
Equamrkl Guinea 25 OM) 
Eribea 25 WO 25 WO 
EthioP 25 WO 25 Ma 
Gabon 1 w m  1 w  OM 
nhml 1w wo 40 O00 80 mo 
Guinea 25 OM 25 Om 
G u I M A i w u  25 ow 25 WO 

50 WO MWO Kenya 
1-mo 8 878 
Liberia 25 OM) 15 WQ 
uwan mi mnallmya zvo uw 200 ow 
Madagaaw 24415 24415 24415 
MaIan 5om 5oWO 
Mas so om Mwo 
MWTlBnla 72 WO now 
Maunlus 83 916 17732 I 7  732 101 w 
MQ- 2 w  ow 2 w  ow 
Ilozambqua 25 OW 25 MO 
Namibia l W W O  im OM 

25 WO 25 WO NW 
N k C 3  2 w  WO 
nrmd. SOOM) Moo0 
Sao Toms and PrmUw 25 OW 25 WO 

1 w  m cu r34 5 2 0  
1 w  wa 

senqlal 
Seychelles 1 w  ow 
sana Lane  22 599 22 599 
Sldim 25 WO 25 OM) 

5oOM)  
5nWO 

Tar rn ia  m m  
5oWO 

Tunism 1w My) 29 edl 70 339 
TWO 

Uganda 1 w o w  50 OW Mow 
Zambia M W O  5om 

Cam- 1 w  WO im mo 

a 878 

2 w m  

Zmbob- 1W OW 1011 R) 069 
002422 2823811 AHL T0t.l 3184086 42 147 47.147 

138 
688 

23 

139 

4 864 
100 

35 395 
1231 

142 
331 

8 1  854 
225 

2 4111 
2 841 

12 s21 
447 

334 
3m 

225 
16.9 
776 
225 

2204 
47 157 

4 a w  
1w 

35 315 
7 231 
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515 
991 

258 
172 

18 140 
172 

1 248 
8.3 

8.59 
89 e40 

470 
243 
126 

3 658 
ea 

781 
601 
243 

145015 
19002 

BB 
12s 

4 433 
54 033 
5056 
1350 

554 
1 2% 

11 778 
7 841 

25 350 
I 4 3 0  
2048 

128 109 
4 899 

$8 lea 
ea 
ea 

133 

47 
47 a5a 

w 
172 
(Is 

25 391 
3 378 
8 171 

33 370 
218 Bs4 

t 217 
5% 
250 
172 

90 142 
103 739 
7.0 400 

EM 
ea 

1373 
2 497 

37 7% 
580 

98.53 
10 400 

457 7ea 
301 

2-794 
5619 

e m a  

(Is 

ea 

1 W  
2 307 

4 140 
51 690 

33 
IM U 3  

74 
432 
30 

172 
29 
33 

371 
3a 
29 

1900 
29 

125 
14 
94 

9 534 

22 
20 

12 

3a 
51 

14831 
1205 

12 
29 

324 
3 328 

8W 
186 
1 w  

7a 

mi 
i me 

175 
1 me 
2 350 

ea 
22 323 

5M 
9656 

14 
5 

14 
14 

5 039 
62 
25 
9 

976 
181 
us 

14 
19% 

14 im 
05 

1 w  
57 
29 

9 874 
1133 
1 524 

14 
143 
2m 

2 399 
36 

2 723 
970 

27 782 
30 

217 W 
688 

111 778 

20 180 
37 221 

JOQ 352 
454 

1 gW313 
ea3 

3 813 

6 8W 
130.3 

1S3 
54E 
881 

0 70s 
288 
2 w  

20 041 
m 

1 374 
101 
953 

88 103 
478 
3-94 
146 

4 244 
911 

858 
639 
u)(I 

159846 
21 107 

911 
153 

4 757 
57 350 
5852 
1 537 

854 

13 065 
8017 

40 7 M  
2 138 

150432 
5 401 

107 841 
101 
92 

141) 
101 
47 

52 890 
530 
1- 
95 

26 367 
3 559 
0 504 

101 
35 372 

233 wo 
1203 

854 
307 
2 w  

99 818 
107 073 
21 825 

636 
101 

1518 
2 758 

40 157 
425 

12808 
17 370 
48s 5Y) 

334 
2346440 

8 307 

21 326 

i 4 m  

m 4 1 8  

2 245 

2 y Y  

3099 

I84 

44 

816 

5 1107 

1792 

18 123 

1608 

MCW 

18 778 
55 210 
20 180 
51 315 

321 197 

1900313 
1 423 
2 8ca 

Em 
5 890 
1503 
2 470 

548 
991 

0 709 
288 

20 Ml 

1374 

ffl 

€47 
364 
t45 

142 
3s 
839 

159646 
21 107 

722 

4 58¶ 

10 717 
1 537 

7 m  

im w 

67 360 

3 234 
11 2 s  
28 418 
40 7 m  
2 $38 

101) 876 
7 887 

151 314 

89 

m 924 
4 131 
2 417 

48 
28 307 
3589 
6 504 

3s 372 
233 080 

t 2 8 3  

99 816 
107 873 
21 9.25 

885 

2 226 

10 164 
425 

7902 
ulsuo 

463 
1248440 

1851 

3 726 

1: 225 

005 

595 

747 

705 

144 

31 

753 

527 

400 

929 
1@8 

ua 

101 
47 

144 
142 
%? 

25 E=$8 

47 

3 837 

4 832 
3 w o  
1 875 

3 328 

1118 
3 

25 070 
9468 

7 972 

41 



UNEP Genml Trust Fur& 

(United Slam Dalan) 
ComDinsd SlaP10 d Conbdukm as at 31 Daambar 2W3 

-la 5.1 

Al59l5lAdd.6 

Ad)urbnana m CDHacbonS m 
Unpd pledger pu y e m  2002.2W3 for U n W  pledges 
8satlJawary pcedaerad P W w f o r  C o ~ s k #  2W2-2w3nd for2W2-2W3 

Cnunhw Omaazaoonr 2002 d p b  2002-2M3 Rsva!u&mr N.lp4adna Mvn- p n a y ~ l  andomy- 
Uzbkishm 9m 1 490 350 1 841 1 1  as1 
MllYBtL 48 86 5 82 128 14 
Venemda 26 858 15 wo 2 293 18 273 45 129 
Wet Nam 1023 50 1061 1081 
Yemen 1 YO 670 143 814 2 3% 
Ywculav,a 1 667 1 667 1 867 
Zambia 1836 172 17 188 1824 
Zmbabwe 1 498 725 49 774 1895 375 
CTL Total 608919 00W) 8714291 908302 9620583 249 475 9401 830 824 010 

Swikerlmd 

of Itl. 0- and D m l o a r n t  urn to -m fol la*w to h. W a M  
485683 (417384) 527194 155984 683 178 751 477 

21 088 21 0 1  21 08d 
8000 8OM 8000 
1553 1553 1553 

893.907 158536 1052434 mow 552 424 
436 777 49311 441 712 441 712 
293 764 293 704 293 764 

Unlcd Klngdom 7WOW L7W OM) 
DUL Tohl 1 1 8 5 8 3  l11173W 2182271 319451 2501729 2017593 552 434 

211 5M 
F l a w  156 wo 158000 158 000 

479 984 90804 90Mu 3 291 587 297 
Mldaggascar 193 OM 45 302 45 302 238 352 
Kenya 

MwurYLlur am BOB 80 402 eo 401 woo0 333 030 
Mozmbque 543 918 906M 90 804 634 520 
SSychdIes 56 349 302-30 M 2 w  14 980 71 560 
Smalia 154 1w 30 2W 30 2W 184 3W 
Soulh Afwa 75 Mo 75 OM) 37 5w 37 5W 

90BM sow 634 sm 
MI ni 2 912 ssll 

United RsprYr of Tanzama 
EAL T O U l  2 515 223 699116 699116 

543 918 

€9L 
Denmark 

F.ml TNSI F u n d F  
184281 184 281 184 281 

3000 17 000 17 OM 20 000 
E ? Z n N  unnm ro1 n o  c-c-nm ot -turn 
and Nahrrd Resowm (IUCN) 13 722 13722 13 722 
Netherlands 107 871 107 a71 
Europsan Union 21 785 21 785 
EEL Tot.1 132636 215 003 215 W3 218 ax3 129635 

9TF m Eah" 
SWikerlaM 342 115 302 115 302 115 
€.a 
EGL Total 302 115 302 115 502 115 

40OM 20 000 20 OM 
CamMia 5OOD 10000 10 OM 10000 5000 

E3.L 
Australia 

Chma WWO BDOW BDWO 
lnmwi la 40m 40 wo 40wo MOM) B o w 0  
M.l*YSis 37 4W 37 400 a? a 
Phi l iwhs  35190 MOOD M O M  29 819 55 571 
Republic a( K m a  30 000 30000 M mo 
Singapore M M O  20 wo mwo 
Vie( Nam T O W  14 OM 14 OM) 21 wo 

Reatam1 T W m d  hngn I m ~ n h ~ Q f ~ ~ b C I l n P ~  ~ t ~ k t S L t m E ~  

-. 40000 

Thsiland 42 308 41 Bw 41 8W 42 308 41 MN) 

ESL Tobl 129 4S9 343 200 343 2W 11)9 327 203 371 

Try.tFued for th* Envlmnnv lh C.dbb.u 
10 Mo 10000 10 000 &rba&S 

Bolivia 25 Mo 25 CQO 
B , d  37 192 37 192 37 192 
Cdombu , UW4 44844 44644 
Coda Rica 27 544 10 126 17 458 
Cubs 40 000 5000 35 wo 
h l v l r a n  Republk 15 000 15OM 
ENPdW 4 mo 3 w o  3 o w  7wo 
€I Salvada M O W  3owo 
Guatemala 5 om 5000 5000 
Honduras 30 OM M w o  
M * X b  48 878 48 876 48284 48 876 
Nicaragua 30 WD 4886 4 s  4886 M wo 

5 075 

ranguay 
ParV 
UNDP Rss Rep Cmmbu 5 915 5 975 
U n i ~ a d  NLldOn.1 Autanoms-Mexlm 4 245 4 245 4 245 
m Tohl 252 178 163 797 163 797 48284 183 922 232 053 

m 

2 02Y 
47 566 

2 029 
47 s6 

42 



Al5915lAdd.6 

Schedule 5.1 

59 580 59 580 59 580 
- 1132354 . 1132354 

9 524 1237 1237 
1 8 3 W  ( 1 3 5 W )  

1 132 354 
41 068 
10 780 

*cP1*ltln of th. O~*n-End.d G royD ot MQW$IS M I n t e m p  
l W W 0  78016 4 1 s  82 781 182 701 
87 455 67 455 

44 405 UnlleaKlrdnll 35114 8 bY1 8 691 
IGL Tab1 203 109 78618 12856 91 472 250 236 44 405 

. .. 

OTf In sumwrt ot m. Pno.mtlon ot a Global As- m nUw and Ib c- 
53 470 53 476 53 476 

K!. 
I85 WJ 

C a d s  
Do-h 1wao5 185 W5 
FlnlPnd 17808 17008 17 608 
FronSa 27 391 27 307 27 397 
M a b  1WO 1 wo 

279 02S 279 029 279 029 
SWedRl 70 493 70 493 70 493 
NMW 

U n l M  Ki lxlda 15775 i s m  15775 
UnlM Stama d A m n a  800 ow 8wwo 800 wo 
MCL Tohl 1WO - 1429244 . 1429384 1 430 )84 

~ O f l h O W ~  POM 
23 7 0 ) s  7015 

51 8% 105 228 105 220 
53 955 30 0@6 30 O%E 
47 003 97 2M 

14 O Y I  
185 

1% 714 

590 683 
25 

25 

27 375 

7 426 

49 107 
. 3805182 

281 605 
147 315 

- 3 143780 
7 015 

197 426 
7 015 
7 015 

28 082 
67 144 

- 1502230 
28 062 

21 045 

97 208 
14 030 
49 107 

805 182 
281 805 
147315 
143 7 W  

7 015 
197 426 

7 015 
7015 

28 082 
67 144 

502 2% 
28 062 

3 490 3 5% 
104 186 52 876 
84 021 

145091 
14 034 
24 431 24 841 

3805182 
420 319 
147 315 

3734443 
3 490 3 550 

3 515 3 525 
7 015 

55 417 
67 144 

1 502 230 
21 385 14 103 

197 420 

21 045 21 045 
Tukey 225 4UE 225 488 225 4BB 
YupCAWl1 489 975 5w 469 475 
EurOpwl union 250 541 250 541 2 226 2% 541 

YEL lot.( 1580065 ~ 10021 557 . 10021557 2220 10584859 824 783 

~ t f u n d ( o r h . ~ l . t . t h . O ' z o n . L w e r ,  
54 754 54025. 54 025 

78 471 10471 
44 497 44 497 

12 847 
50468 

43 136 

4 559 

13594 

75 
9017 

105447 

53 083 
104638 
120 242 

0 315 
12 024 
8 078 
8 747 

35 2M 

53 063 
104638 
120 242 

0315 
72 024 

B 747 
35 204 

0 878 

24 530 24 530 
303 868 333 wa 

459 103 
25 326 

5 841 
10 034 
9 388 

11 855 
13 834 
19 488 

238019 
317195 

6 904 

459 103 
25 326 
5 641 

lfi034 
9 388 

11 855 
13 834 
19498 
23.3 019 
817 195 
6904 

54 754 
76 471 
44 472 

37 153 12 847 

72024 
13 160 
8 747 

35 204 
24 530 

303 868 

459 103 
7 25 326 

5 841 

9017 
in ins 

73 721 
1 744 13 834 

Is7 488 .. .~ 
230019 
er7 790 

6904 

54 025 

25 

50 460 

53 692 

77 

13 594 

9 386 
43 581 

43 



Schedule 5.1 

Af59NAdd.6 

JB 518 

4094 

Turkey 
wrrarne 33653 
UnWd Anb Emin*. 46813 174) 
Unlted Kicgdom 
U"lIed S l a ( O . o ( ~  3 328 539 
Urhhrlan 4854 
Va".N0i* 694 
Yugaravls 43 724 
Europun Unm 11eJOo 110300 (18868 432 
YPL Tehl 3794640 611 4921 321 - 4921 321 80 639 4951977 3764504 

11 MB 
51 051 
81 ea7 
11 329 

Jo 3 3  
5 548 
2 4% 
18 257 
21 722 
87 Lm4 
56 166 
26 053 
18488 
19 170 
118 387 
48 259 
54 071 
12 788 
20 692 

95M 
409 489 

1042617 - 1  

9 785 

11 048 
51 051 
81 667 
11 329 

30 383 
5 548 
2 458 
16 257 
21 722 
87 mr 
50 188 
28 053 
18 4W 
19 170 
118387 
40 258 
54 077 
12 768 
20 692 

9 504 
409 489 
042617 

9 785 

9 197 

6 467 

28 823 

11 M8 
55 652 
81 667 
1 1  329 
4 094 
30 383 

2 416 
16257 
21 722 
87 004 
% 168 
26 053 
10453 

118387 
48 251 
54 077 
12 800 
20 692 
33 653 
35 674 
409 489 
950 000 

10479 

iacm 

31 915 

5 548 
42 

15 
9 1s 

25 

20 370 

3421 156 
4 654 

43 724 

Pa*,& 

44 

+a8989 

44 274 

582 
1072 
1 7% 
976 

4 470 
362 

1181 

1 581) 

13 
382 

11 538 
1 487 
1401 

10 700 

38 420 

559 

464 
1433 
261 
778 

1340 

14% 
7 784 

5611 

15 

80 9Q3 
111 406 
80 303 

144 
256 
8% 
144 
808 
72 

12 227 
150 

2 439 
1216 
10778 
4ca 

51 BSB 
S 193 
38431 
468 801 

71 
458 

707 022 
440 

31 294 
216 
72 

8-1 
22 878 
18 372 

379 622 
2% 
538 

1000 
2 145 
432 

5 281 
1077 
152 
144 

1022 
72 
288 
112 

a 011 
120919 
18 420 

1 12 
3 457 
45 080 
4 313 

2r 285 

"I -- 
80903 129 892 
111406 11 1  406 
80 303 95 261 29 316 

144 34 144 
2% 256 ~~. 
856 
144 
808 
72 

12227 
150 

2 439 
1216 

4na 
51 658 
5 193 
38 431 
488 801 

71 
436 

707 022 
440 

31 294 
216 
72 

8 601 
22 076 
18 372 
27 285 
379 622 

250 
536 

1wO 
2 145 
432 

5 281 
1077 
3s) 
144 

1022 
72 
288 
112 

3 w  
120919 
16 420 

112 
3 457 
45 080 
4 313 

10 778 

89 
7 

10513 

143 

1297 
167 

1 M 4  

8 618 

1218 

16 697 
118 

3 620 
1216 
10778 

51 8% 
2 600 
38 431 

468 801 

707 022 
455 

42 830 
1587 

0 MI 
22 639 
18 372 
27 285 
416 042 

536 
1 559 

432 
5 281 
1077 
nnn 

1203 

288 
112 

1340 
120903 
16420 

6 731 
45 080 
9 924 

1216 
2 603 
1048 

394 

2- 

2 593 

84 
818 

96 
1473 

11 033 

256 

2 145 

t 517 

850 

3 WE 
16 

1 548 
4 510 



VNEP General Tw.1 Funds Al5915lAdd.6 

Schedule 5.1 

Adiumenol to co11ecbons 8" 

Unpaid pledge. plw yean' 2002 - 2003 for Unpaid pledges 
collec6ons for 2002 - 2003 and for 2002 - 2003 

pnOr warn and pnor yean 
as El 1 Jnualy pledga yld Pledges for 

C O u n W b S / d ~ ~ O M  2002 r m p b  2W2.2W3 RevaIUams Nel @edger Mure yearn 
Panam. lG98 1 008 1308 1006 

Pent 5 690 7 137 7 737 6715 6 721 
FllllipiWS 6 441 6441 2 350 6 441 
Poland 19941 19 941 19 941 
Prxhgal 32 030 32 030 32 030 
RepubUc 01 Mo!dova 239 451 451 690 
Rmania 4 097 4 097 4 097 
Sao Tune and Pnncipe 3 71 71 74 
Saudi Arabia 40215 40215 40 215 
Sensga1 1565 4 w  4 w  135 1965 
Slovak RapuMic 2 ne 2 776 I snn 7 776 
Slmmna 5 053- 5 033 5 033 
Som4ia 1401 72 72 1473 
Saum ~ f r i ~ a  12 029 27 701 27 701 14 590 39 730 

85 leu 184 274 184274 269 434 
Sti LanLs 265 992 992 480 777 
sppin 

S d * ,  15 70 030 70 030 43 I54 32 891 
SWitraiSnd 89 185 89 185 89 185 
Tajikistan 32 32 32 
Tog0 1310 72 72 1382 

240 318 318 378 180 
U W i M  12987 9 298 9 298 22 295 
uniled Ku&ml 380 906 380 908 380 906 
Unikd Repubt of Tanzania u8 (4191 248 248 367 
Uruguay 4 026 4 481 4 481 1387 7 120 
UZWiiZb" 2 801 1352 1352 4153 
Ewvcan  umon 80 804 80 094 00 540 346 
ISL Total 316 116 14041 3247997 . 3247997 43 mo 3 287 250 278 459 

80 wo 80 wo en ow 
rn 
China 
Japan 125 WO 248 869 1131 250 000 2% ow 125 000 
R~~ of Mrsa 2 w  000 200 wo 200 wo 
Ruraian FedemIan 1 w  wo 1 w  ow looow 200 000 

Panguav 1 072 1072 1 072 2 144 

Tunids 2 080 2 040 1036 2 080 
WWda 

C m d I  rln nvI snl th.R Oume of - 
PNL 1-1 225 WO 628 1 9  1131 830 WO 530 000 325 000 

ot th Pnmmron for *- p 
Intwnl0onllAellon on PenI-oHut.nb. and R W  I f luOn Excham h Tech Assbbncs hcctlvltl~s 

49811 49811 49811 
m 
A"SbaC3 
Be!gium 347 790 247 799 347 799 
Canada - 3151 095 - 3151 095 3 151 095 
Czech RsplMic 3 w o  3 000 3 000 
DeWlWk 3 5 o m  (350ow) 14 838 14 838 14 838 
Finland 18 810 19810 10610 
F- 51 125 51 125 51 125 
Garmany 396 517 396 517 328 949 67 568 
Iceland 24wo 24 MI0 24 WO 
llaly 2 w  wo 2 w  ow 2 w  ow 
Japan 1m wo 100 ow 100 000 
LUXWnbWrg 19 187 19 187 19 167 
N m  Zealand 58 223 58 223 58 223 
Netherlands 196 441 186441 196441 
w a y  130 530 130530 130 530 
SrrdDn 219692 219692 219692 
s*lr"rlaMi A% 8 M  4% 809 446 no+ 
united Kingdom 378 435 378 435 378 435 

Euwean Unbn 21 065 ea 999 8% 999 88 061 
U"ltW stam d AMKI 428 264 (224 197) 3 109 197 - 3109197 7986 3 313 264 

I""* CircLml&r conhxncs 4 184 732 732 4916 
POL Tohl 803 513 (574 197) 9 ow 020 - 9034020 7986 9 195 788 87 568 

234 753 

32 390 32 390 
231 863 231 863 
51 451 51 431 
97 138 97 138 
18 529 18 529 
51 125 51 125 

879519 679519 

100 wo 100 000 
858 8.U 

.. ... 
32 390 

231 883 
51 431 
97 136 
18 529 
51 125 

679 519 
234 753 
100 wo 

9<R .~~ ..- _ _ _  
24 999 234 295 230 295 255 294 

N-Y 67 268 87 269 67 289 
S d U l  114 738 114738 114738 
S i k " h d  77 304 740000 710 WO 787 301 
U W  Kingdom 299 560 299 560 299 560 
U n M  Slates of A m e n u  . lwomo . i a r s o w  1 mow 
PPL Total 337 053 - 3703488 - 3703489 4 040 542 

15 



Schedule 5.1 
UNEP a n m l  Trust Funds 

Combined ShbsofCnnbituDmsar) a1 31 D s c e m b n 2 ~ 3  
( U W  s w a  WlaFa) 

for UI m n r  
3 197 15 538 15 536 

lo, Ih. P P  

2 429 

39 m3 

2 849 

50 
542 

16 188 

MOW 

735 

31 

20 

514 

468 412 
1083 

1331 

21 127 
13 1BB 

15489 
23211 
37 843 
2 120 

15 454 
1789 
1773 
9 829 
7 521 

91 163 

137 384 
5 447 
1 676 
4 297 
2 B w  
2 570 
3 331 
5 078 

74 838 
284 202 

1843 
1371 
2 707 

14 158 
23 097 

3 144 

8 622 
343 

3 265 
8 1oQ 

16 503 
15 3% 
7 825 
3 121 
5 233 
35 970 
14915 
17 137 
2 754 
6 144 
2 101 
2 007 

72 393 
547 181 

2 373 

21 127 
13 1BB 

15489 
13211 
37 643 
2 120 

15 454 
1 789 
1773 
9 829 
7 521 

91 183 

137 384 
5 441 
1876 
4 297 
Zeeu 
2 570 
3 331 
5 076 

74 838 
284 202 

1843 
1371 
2 701 

14 158 
23 091 
3 144 

8 622 
543 

3 285 
8 109 

18 503 
15 396 
7 825 
3 121 
5 233 

35 870 
14 915 
17 137 
2 754 
6 144 
2 101 
2 007 

72 393 
347 181 

2 373 

1 

5 53s 

18 258 

18 

3 197 
21 127 
13 168 

15488 
S l l Y  
37 643 
2 120 

15454 
I 480 
1773 
9 829 
7 521 

91 163 

137 3%4 
5 917 
1 678 
4 547 

11 465 
3 331 
5 076 

60 120 
284 202 

1 643 

1707 
14 158 
23 075 
3 144 

135 
8 622 

3 265 
6 100 

16 503 
15 398 
7 825 
3 121 
4 M7 

35 970 
14 926 
17 137 
2 774 
6 144 
2 101 

57 
72 393 

175WO 

15538 

2 429 

e 945 

309 

2 849 

3 202 
7 293 

14 118 
20 wo 

1371 

22 

243 

1186 

20 

3 795 

840 593 
1 083 

13302 
E m  U"lW 35 034 35 054 105 35 034 
VCL Toh l  mW5 1331 1428050 - 1428050 23 925 1261 217 734 7% 

w?% 
Senegal 15 OW 15 OW 15 OW 
WAL Toh l  1 5 o M  1 5 w o  1 5 w  

IWSBQdW~.P m p c ~ m  A,". ofm W~SI and Cmnl Afrk  an R W ~  

rn OTF m ~ovid .  GIOM mrmn P 
Canada 711 926 711 926 711 926 
WPL Tohl  71 1 926 711 926 711 928 

ToUI Wnaral Trust Funds 21141196 (2207580) 87Ou210  1122837 WlW728  1081791 88024464 18039115 

Ynnaid Pledaaa for 200'2 -2003 and Prior Years 
Within one year 3 4 0 1  154 
One year and over 14637 9cl 

46 
Tot.) 18038115 

-.-. . . . . 



Al59l5lAdd.6 

Statement VI 

Trust Fund for the Mullllamral Fund for ihe holementation of me Montreal PtVtocol on Substances that De~lete the 
c2zQmhH 

Statement of income and exwndnum and chanms in rereNw and fund balances 
for the biennium 2002-2003 ended 31 December 2303 

(United States dollars) 
m m 

vohmlw cmtribums Sch 8.1 283 821 989 277 719 a70 
cncomr RBferenCe 

lnteresl income 18 320 868 42 853 142 
Miscellaneous i m m e  12 425 764 639 279 

Total Income 314 JB8 621 321 212 291 

Ersenditure 
staff and other Personnel costs 
contradua seryices 
Travel 
Operating expenses 
Acquisitions 
Programme support msls 
UNEP managed activities 
UNDP managed adivilks 
UNDO maMaed activities 

Statement X 

See note Mow -I- 

5 063 969 
915 974 
361 562 
671 548 
883 379 
485 338 

17 832 017 
67 886 472 
68 a79 QRP 

3 848 879 
722 393 
332 957 

1 554 419 
356 232 
376 170 

14 178 303 
108 102 795 

RR 1m wm . . . . . . ._ _ _  . ._ _ _ _  
Wo4d Bank <anaged a d i i e s  J 135 793 574 157840408 

(32 241 251) 
TOM mpndnure 298 413 775 3 5 3 w 5 4 2  
ExwsSl(sh0may) of lnmme over e m d i h v e  18 154 846 
Pnci p6nod adiustments 196 945 (387 OW) 
Net excesd(shomlall) of income over expandlure 
Resewas and hrnd balances bsginnmg d penw 
Reserves and fund ba a m  em of penod 

16 351 791 
546 337 421 
562 689 212 

(32 628 276) 
570 965 697 
546 337 421 

Statement of assets, liabllltle8. m e w n  and fund br lancn 
aa at 31 December 2003 

- 
Cash and term deposits Sch 3.1 73537204 96 205 222 
Intdund recaivable Nde 6 7 276 055 
Voluntary pledges recabable Sdl6.1 163586703 139764005 
Other aCCDuntS receivable 188 858 478 392 
Promissor/ notes 126 B45 032 65164037 
Advances provided to implemenUng agencies 21 7 073 573 
Deferred charges 18 621 4 618 

Total assets 564 514 694 548 700 847 

193 001 241 

LiPbiliti.. 
Interfund pavable 
Other acuxntr payable 
Reserve for obl i iom 

Note 8 273 685.00 
522 520.00 238 248.00 

354 375.00 160 564.00 
Deferred uedlts 123485900 140865700 

Total ImbMleS i 826 482 M) 2 372 428 00 

Cumulative surplus 562 680 212 546 337 421 
546 331 421 
548 709 847 

Resewea and fund balancer 

Total resen'et and fund balances 
Total IraLxiltms. reserves and fund balances 

562 689 212 
564 514 604 

Siatemerd of cash now 
for the biennium 2002-2003 ended 31 December 2003 

C-8 from omrrtlna actlvlties 
het excesd(shorcfal) of inmme over wenddure 
Increaee in volmbn/ p wges mwwablo 
(Inuease)/decrease m a m n l s  receivable 
lncxease n deferred charges 
Increase o m  accnunts payable 
Increase reserve for obl gallons 

16 351 791 (32 628 276) 
(23 002 OM) t w w r m  

309454 I99 537) 
(14003) 3 114 

(288 272) 367 038 
184811 H ROg\ . ---, 

L B I I  mtor*rt l-me (18320888) (42 853 142) 
Net cash from operatlng acldvttes (25 577 785) 81 855 675 

Cash no& from investlnp and (inancine acllvltia 
Increase in promissory notes (31 760 995) (13411 116) 
(1ncrease)ldscrease in net advallCes provided lomy 
implementng agendas 24 072 332 105 757 712 
Increasel(decrease) in interfund payable (7 550 MO) (295 326) 
Inmasel(deuease) in deferred uedits 

Plus: interest inmme 18320888 42 853 142 
(145 260 010) (171 798) 

Net cash now horn investing and financing acli~ilie~ 2 909 767 

(22 668 018) 71 300 077 
98205222 24 705 145 
73 537 104 €36206222 

(10 355 SsaL 
Cash flow from other sounes 
Net inuease/(kw@ in cash and term deposits 
Cash and twin deposits. winning of pemd 
Cash and term deposits. end of period 

Chbnaes to Drevious years exwnditures as re~orted bv the maior lmDlementinQggencie& 
The reported expenditure includes the changes in prior period expenditures as reported by the implementing agencies 
and treated as part of the current year expenditures. 
For easy monitoring of the expenditures reported by the major impiementing agenda, (UNDP. UNEP, U N l W  and WB- 
IBRD). the Treasurer has adopted the practice of recording any changes reported by these agencies against previous 
period@) expenditures. as part of the current period transactions. 
In this regard, the total expendltures reflected in the wrrent accounts include an amount of US$20.027,231 relating to 
previws periods but reported in tne current period 
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781 586 
2 323 437 

31 824 

103 927 
7308065 

353 197 

20 OM 

1 833 802 
10 838 933 

73 903 

336 144 

233712 
35 876 

84 325 085 

58 126 

77 183 

- 44534 
- 173818 - 3 0 8 5 3  . 56Bw - 7710814 
- 400582 
- 2412042 
- 44336 
- 1984076 
- 23160305 - 23X4798 
- 1518809 
. 386867 

126 820 - 874110 - 1286333 
. 15224929 
. 68013808 
- 59411 - 2,577 

(20111) 69510 . 288214 
1500 

- 1 4 M 5  - 5823180 - 754018 
- 2140152 
- 959582 
. 14608Oxll 
. 4788102 
- 131413 - 155619 
- 6710309 
- 3068182 
. 4783422 - 10296 

213080 

879 788 
38 275 

179610 

2 Y  078 
5 153010 
2467613 

184 144 

10426 
Y) 262 
37 545 

1506584 

7 103 

155 082 

504095 
685 421 
203 w 7  

44w 
1 7 3 W  

3893933 
.%em 

8580610 
498 867 

2 591 652 
u 335 

2 238 1% 
26313315 
25 732 411 

1 702 863 
386 887 
137 0- 
604 372 

1 323 878 
16 731 493 
68 013 908 

59 41 1 
21 377 
6S 510 

295 317 
1 W  

14 385 
6085889 

804511 
2 404 628 

859 582 
1 615 383 
1798 102 . .. .. 

131 413 
155819 

9 214 404 
3 733 803 
4 9BB 429 

10 298 

.. .. 
1 w  wo 

3 893 933 
86 624 

1234858 8580610 
4 w  867 

1141 129 
44 1w 

2238154 
28 313 315 
25 560 925 

€65 735 
386 687 
167058 
904 372 
199901 

18 803 910 
BB013wB 

133314 
10 O M  

285 317 
15w 

14 385 
6095689 

804 517 
24LM62E 

224 950 
755 889 

131 413 
155619 

8238807 
3 781 729 
4 942 429 

728 120 
2 497 20s 

1 450 523 

103 927 
7JMLoBs 

171 488 

1W4241 
1861105 

10 838 933 

11 Y I  
381 543 

W3M 
886280 

89121 187 

975 587 

24 OM) 

- 7814408 
20 685 857 5w 037 
59@31041 33513801 

61 913 371 W 

m 7  057 - 7814408 UXraine 7 206 751 - 807857 
United kngdom 5W 037 . 19414330 1441527 20055857 20 685 857 5w 037 
Unded Stales of h e n u  21 718276 - 71 428006 - 71 426BBB 5 9 ( u i ~ 1  33513801 
Uzbeklstsn 350 701 - 83106 83 108 61 913 371 W 

Total 139 7 W  005 (147908) 283821WS 14813JH) 2986Y533U 1234859 274084673 l@3@8703 

Ynrmid PIwJan for 21242 -2w3 and Prior Y . m  
Within one year 
One year and over 

43 871 672 

110 895 031 
Tobl 163 SW 703 

sch.dule6.1 
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SlaIernenl VII 

UNEP Tochnlcal Cooperation 
Trust Funds 

Technicdl CooPenllOn Techniol CownUon Te:hniWl Coopemlion TC Trust Fund for Sr Tech TechnicaiCoopenlan Tschnral Coopermon TechniUI Cwpeallon 
Trual Fund lo Ass* Cwpniaiaon Omiosr- Trust Fund lo Support TNSI Fund lo Pmvids TnrftFund fm Fhansno of 

C o n ~ l h n ~ l e i  10 PmfesYonaI m@N Implemenlalion of Agenda he UNEPnat Developing Cwntna 1.3 UNEP Brussels ETlablishmenl of Regional 
21 in EumPa and 10 Irnplsmentallon Cenm Tab A d m  in Centres under lhs Basal DBMloping COYII~+S (Finanmd by Ihr 

Convemn F i n a d  by (Finmad by the Govammerd of Finland) Slren917.n lhe Pan- (Flnanmd by the Amdano.  Agenda 

TNSI Fund lo Auirt lhe TNSl Fund in Supprt of 

Evmpan En*mnmental Govemmnlof Normy) 21 (Finmad bythe the Gcvemrmnl of Governmen1 d Finland) 
cocpmlbn (FhanM by Gommmnl dSwdm) swnzelland) 

the Gownmarl of ma 
Nelh&nds) 

Bmbhed -n*nl el Incow and - n d h  AHL ANL ASL BNl BSL CDL CEL 
t th .  biinnbm zwa.ooa end.,i 81 m camber 

Slues dolhn) !3sb!wB 

187754 IS464 
lntinlt inwm 27311 9618 1 9 155 379 PO58 

ln€Qal! 
valrntary mnlributanr 

M i r t c l b n e w s  hcom 324 
Total lnwme 27311 324 9618 187 757 8 155 379 lQ520 
!3F&!!g 

SIN and othar pamnei  wrtr 1 7 4 W  V 700 307 574 
Conhaaual SeNkeS 
Tn-1 1235 12 789 
O W l M  MPCfl-8 13 382 1573 242 
Accuiliuanl 3 279 
P m m e  tupwnmsts Slalemnt x 20 862 1 323 33 414 

Tow Exmndhlm 195643 I1 498 1 573 398019 

ex#analum 27311 324 9618 n 8861 * Y3)  (1 794) (171 499) 

RefunC lo don00 
Pdor oidod rdiurmmnb (174 488) (81 7731 
N a  u ~ ~ u ( ~ ~ 1 1 )  01 inmm OYI 

explmdflum 27311 324 9618 (7 8881 (176 829) (1 194) (287 2721 
?mnrional L d n p  on or~.nB(Iatlon of 
p4Wp.md.' oK@hnr 3 295 

R e u r n  d hmd b.knar .  Winnina of p e w  20 727 (418 WE) 127446 176 829 5 647 471 99(1 

Em.rl(hom.n) of n m l ~  oMI 

Tnww lo oher funds 

Resams and M balences, end of pew 48 oJ8 (418 $44) 137084 V 8808 4 455 2m 021 

dsae 
can and lam do& 3.1 111 750 137084 1 9% 4 453 23 830 
I W n d  m i v a u a  Note 8 

Omtraaovntl mcgnbb 10 305 
Volunhry O ~ . S  maivlbb 

mremd L+UT~.S 
Tola1 assob 111150 10 305 137084 195a 4 453 133 830 

M. 8 63 712 426649 59s 
9 840 5 745 

=nd pW*b 
Mher munu PqtM 
R e r m  ~ ~ b l b m i m  a 471 

Tola LbilWS 63 712 128 849 0 WO 31 OW - 
C"nlU1tW 'UmlUl 48 038 (418344) 137084 (7 8881 4 453 2 0  021 
Toel mew and fund Man- 48038 (418 344) 1 3 7 W  (7 888: 4 453 2m mi 
ToUi bbillks, n W m S  and fund balUIO.i 111 750 10 505 137oM 1 954 4 453 2 s a a  

P 
W 



111 0 

UNEPTechnlcal Coopenthn 
T N X t  Funds 

Techmu1 Co6pscamn 
Tmsl Fund for Ihe 

PmYiibn of a Senlor 
PmfesMn.1 m r  w 

UNEP ( F i r u n d  by Ihs 
Government of Canada) 

CSL 

974 

DNL WL 

1283880 
4 329 78 299 

ELL EML FBL 

2 801 47: 
37 624 13711 

11 554 430 
812 494 

h h I u o u s  heom 2 329 328 I294 
Toul IlYoM 275 974 4 329 4 342 288 2 939 328 13 711 12 5(vI 218 
ulaacllun 

W M d  Mhrpmmd Cads 103 788 290819 3 628 481 
cw4aawlwvb.r 2062291) 81 1 703 8 556 W 1 5 2  
TRvll 21 477 05 750 5 852 301 a59 

20 do5 149 508 5 059 88 332 
loo 81 

0P.nhg rXpn-1 
mm* 
Pmmnm. a u ~ ~ c e d s  st.lm*r* x 173 888 145 248 2 531 

Tool W h m  2 372 062 1283098 21 997 4 332 805 
ExWsIohCml.Y) of Ixana ova 
.xpmdYlm 275 974 4329 1 970 228 1 678 230 (8 Zen1 8 m s a i r  
Tmlhrta olhrMda 
Refund m omn 
FmrmRodW.nbmnh 25 427 no 
MI axcmf(shodfdl of n m m  0y.r 
(UD.ndW8 275 974 4 329 1 070 728 1 701 657 D 2 B a  8035051 

F h X W o b l l p M I W  2 188 

burn mnd fwd tumm. beohmno or mw 3 837 18 831 37 2a5 (193 2931 194 323 7 879 003 
R . r m m d  M d  -. ndofwmd 3 912 19 846 41 594 1 070 228 1WW 188223 15 714 664 

m#andunpr on 0r-m of 

Awli 
Cuh.nd*md.pMU 3 1  3 012 19812 m 601 2 857 a3 1 M E  127 189 582 15 em 4e2 
I-- W S  
V o M r y p * d p . I r n I n M  
~ . o s o ~ n o l t m b h  7 842 57 248 1 8 3 9 3  
D.kmdc?nrp.. 9 315 3 732 

Tool ~ I u t  3 912 19 812 m mi 2 674 640 1 945 375 189 582 I8 100 587 

IrnIfdnd pmb* Not.8 21 097 27 330 54488 1Ed 72 932 

Resew fwo4lhdor 651 931 337 278 1203 16s 370 

Lwu!& 

on* Kicwnu WOW. 7 25 153 45 247 l U D 1  

Tots1 Dlbllbi 7 21 097 704'14 437 011 1359 385 933 
m n r m ~ c d ~  

Total Ihb~litbs, DHMS and fund balan-8 3 912 IS 812 81 891 2 874 @40 1 845 375 188 582 la 100587 

C u r n u M  s~mlus 3912 19 805 41 594 1 870 2.% lM8W 188 223 15714854 
Tool RIrWI and fund babncer 3 912 19 805 41 584 1 970 228 1 W W  188 223 15711854 
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UNEP Technical Cwpention 
TrustFunds 

Combimd dabmnt dineom and . r w . n w  JGL llsL KTL LDL MHL MRL PHL 
(orth. bhnnhuQ.i?Q02 -2Ml endad I 1  D.+.mbsr Kn 
%d Sts1.S dciIan) R.hnnH 

Wlrntary ConmbuOms 403 939 I 758 858 287 801 
tntefan inmm 31 459 3 524 1103% 4 785 5 354 8218 
Mis&sn.OU8 kcom 55 

T O 1  1- 31 459 3 524 514 334 1 783 821 5 3.54 288 017 

?E%otiwpemnn* mrb 4 M  490 19495 28 Be4 
canb.ctu*3Nic.s 515 773 26 594 5 229 
T-I 100318 7 524 13 941 

A c q u m n i  52 007 3013 2 450 
PmDmnme suwon m** Sllenunl x 158000 (17% 8 550 

Omt ino  expenses 149 607 27 MB (1 3321 82 

Tots1 Emendnu* 1 382 075 83 372 (1 505) 50 9% 
E l W s h o W A I  o( KIsomr o w t  
w e n d b m  31 459 3 524 (007 745) t 879 949 8859 238 081 
Tmmlw lo olhsr funds 

R~IB-S and fund balxes.  beginning of patiod 403 487 79 728 1572 195 89802 (49 5301 
Resews and fund balaws,  n d  of pemd 434 948 704 450 1 879 949 78461 239 081 I49 5301 

713401 

182 378 

78481 169 892 
74 443 

h f a s d  chamsr 
Tots1 aes.18 447 947 869 989 ' 875 777 78461 244 135 

15 034 192 828 
19481 

49 530 

R ~ M M  for o a w m  13001 131 024 3 002 5 054 
Tots1 i kb i l i tw  13 001 185 539 195 828 5 054 49 530 

CUmUlatNe W Q h S  434 948 7 M  450 ' 079 949 76 461 239 081 (49 5301 
Tolal reserves and lund balancas 434 948 7M 450 1 879 949 78 481 239 081 (49 5301 
T o l l  haillms, reserves and fund balsnras 447 947 889 989 1 875 777 76 481 244 135 

~ R M S  and fund b a l m s s  



Stalemnl VII 

UNEP Technical Cooperation 
T N S t  Fundr 

Tachniml h p e n w n  
TNSI Fund Iorlhe 

Pmmokn 01 Renewable 
E n q y  in We 

Mdltsrmnsan R e w n  

REL 

988 5w 
29 121 

TCTF 10 Supplhs 
implament ofthe 

Romrdam .% Sto&hlm 
Conven in Dsv CourMer 

330 wo 
7 958 50 771 

510MO 
11 159 

Special P u m e  TF Technical 
for lhe PRV of a Coopwallon Trurl 

Pmf*r*"ai omcer Fund for We 
10 UNEaKEC UNEPIGEF 

SNL SPL 

3VO 030 
9 812 11 228 

Mlscai~eour Inmm 
Told lrmrm 12 828 i 927 a21 337 958 M 771 521 799 309 842 11 228 

Egm&.!Q 
Strlfmd oher pemmel msls 258 962 87 a47 178 984 520 801 219450 05 701 
c0llmdY.I w*s 81 070 5 w o  99 349 
T m l  3 188 42 108 
o p m  exFeN.1 1810 25 000 5 823 
Acguwdnl 5 712 
PRgremm ~ w m m l t l  smmnt x 33 eas 20 088 3 2 M  23 855 62 472 26 334 

TOW ExpndWn 292 827 174611 28 250 205 aw 583 073 245 7 M  z i a  553 
E m W ( ~ a l l )  d inmm ever 
expndmn (279 801) a53 010 909 708 (1% lyB) (61 274) M 058 (207 325) 
Tn&U dherlunds 
RIfund lo donm 
Pmr pnod nmhncnla 23 577 (58 1551 
Nu amul(rhodf8Ml d hmm over 
expndihm (279801) a53010 909 708 (1YBUI) (37 a97) M 058 (205 4aol 
'PmviliJMI sminut on or Mccllalm" OT 
pnor p e w  ob5sbbm 

Resews and find bahncai, bwinninp of p.kd 314 838 782 823 (148 4301 384 a= 
Rereme, and lund b.IImL, md of W d  35 037 853 010 309708 a07 975 (164 127) a4 058 119374 

rthnrm of - U M  RYrY.. 
p 

Cuh md tam bPOuU 3'1 42 523 780 112  MI 70s ma 200 75 380 131 558 
lnttlhrnd m w b b  M e  0 
volrntry w g e a  nwivabk 
o h  a m n u  mmivlbb 132 070 
Wmd dUWl 

brra 

T01.I =sew 42 523 912 182 909 708 808 260 75 380 131 558 

k@!!lJm 
lnliknd w a b b  NO* a 78 243 2 s  lea a83 1288 
mrscmunu payabk 7 488 17 U4 3 ma 
Resm for oblpamn 40 829 11 322 6 972 

Total UbYlea 7 48e 59 172 285 184 127 11 322 12 184 
R.Yw. .m WMI 
Cumuhhye wm*u 35 037 853 010 309 708 807 975 ( 1 Y  127) c 0% 110374 
101.1 m s e ~ s  .ncl lund batancar 35 037 853010 3w 708 807 975 (184 1271 Mu058 119374 
ToUl U9biti.a. m n m s  and fund b 4 . m  42 523 912 1.92 909 708 (UUI 210 15 580 131 558 



SIdemnl VII 

UNEP Technkal Coopantion 
TNS: Funds 

UNEP UNEP Technlcil Cooperation Trust TC Trust Fund far Techniwl Coop.mlbn Tedlnk4 Coopemtion TKnnUl  Coopemtbn Technic4 
enhanmnmnl of Twsl Fund forha Twsl Fund forth0 TNII Fund lo hd.1  Cwp.RMn Trud h4sdaneour 
mopnilon be1 Pmvisbn of sn lmpienvnbtion 01 UNEP- b,mbp.hg Counhar lo Fund lor me Pm*Et Actmes Funds 

UNEP a d  UNCC ExeCu:Ivc AuManl  lo UNCTAD c.P.uhl Taka Adion for lhe Pmvdion of I Total 
lhe E x l C u t ~  Diredor Building Tadlt Force on Pmlmiin of We Ozone Mlnirg Expart 

(Financad by Ihe Adivit isan Tmde, Lqer under the V i m  (Finanad by We 
Govemmnl of the Envimnrnenl and Cannnh-~ a d  Monwal sdr A I W ~  

hi14 mgdom) D.wlopnMnl Fmtoml (F inend  by Chsmbecol Mines) 
tha Govemmml of 

Finbnd) 
UCL UKL UTL w ZAL ZBL 2003 2w1 Comblud M3rnnI ol hcom I nd .xmndltun 

for the bknnlum W2&03 a i  m w m h  

Wndad Slaiardolbn) l?&Ltl@ 
- 2003 

m!m 
Vomsry mnhibutbns 1 897 040 94 258 3 w m  55 8W 1 u  718 288 105 219 333 
lnfensi nmme I8 485 10 2- 35 187 45 101 5 318 149 4883215 
MI~IIIIIMOW in- 42 980 23 005 

T o l d  Income 2 018 305 1M 462 335 181 101 301 170 138 023 108 925 553 
ExMnditvn 

Sldl and 0W.I panmnel S0.h 450 765 48 029 25 282 37 807 269 21 928 1J9 
CcnlmEtud MNUl 153 820 180 421 227 951 44800000 23 258 498 
TWel 31 575 50 208 3 B w  8 216 288 4 2 1 2 6 3  
Operam sxpanaer t o  181 88 529 1119 19 (D1 883 13095 553 
AquisiliMf 186 421 1 e n  4 94 820 2 m o u  
Prmramma S U P W ~  CON SIa1.menl X 108 494 5 781 41 814 30 637 3524108 3 322 044 

ioisl El endam 943 w2 53 193 361 119 ZM 307 116885865 88 467 532 
bws$ho~afal~) i i n m m  over 
sxpendilun 1 073 243 M ea0 (26 552) (185OW) 53 474 158 41 454021 
Trnsnrferle 0tnaf""dS (382 773) 

Pnor p3md adjudmank 9 870 14522351) I895 191) 
Nel exceru(rMnfal1) d i m m e  w . r  
ewmdIIwe 1 073 243 50 889 (28 552) (155 130) 120 799) 48 €09 435 40 310 108 
Prn"Ill,MI rasng. 0" II( on.m!Jmion d 
prior p.Mds'obllOahorPl 40 ow 82 851 I117 949) 

Reasner and fund balanws. b g l d n g  of penad 18 288 460 m7 811 592 20 799 380 87482913 27 290 153 
Rer.wa and fund balmcas. end of p&ed 1 Oi3 243 128 -1 433 515 y)I 482 380 1163l5199 61 482 813 

Refund I0 donors (20 799) (142 072) (59 945) 

C o m b d  rmtemnl ol aU.11. hbllllkr. n YW. 
and fwd binncss as* 31 

&* 
Cash and lerm depomla 3 1  1 034 732 132 599 555 010 599 733 117 121 821 12 251 818 
inlafund mcOIVabb Note 8 390 138 913 3 522 9W 
voluniary pledges (ew~vabb 55 Boo 480 750 
Olheraccounll TBCtwabk 118 524 5 528 34M8413 17 021 118 

TdBI a1selS 1 2C4 258 132 599 580 539 855 333 390 152587699 92 630 820 
warred c h a p s  149 899 28 815 

Q.- 
Inlafund paysbla Nde 8 21 499 267 58 285 28 281 23 510 252 132205f4 
oihr a-unts payable 11410 824 42 780 4 2y) 314 2 854 223 
R ~ I ~ T v ~  lorobliiation E8 104 2 541 24 699 122 590 8 445 814 B 473 120 

_. Total Iiibililies 131 013 3 832 121 024 150 811 38 212 5w 25 347 8C7 
&S.N.S and fund hian- 
c~rn~iative SUQ~UI 1 073 243 129 967 433 515 504 482 390 118 375 189 81 482 913 
To181 i e m ~ e ~  and lund balanea 1 013 243 128 981 433 515 504 462 380 118375 199 87 482 913 
Tomi LahtlibaL W%NI$ end fund b l a n r s  1 ZM 250 132 589 SM) 539 055 333 380 152 501 889 82 830 820 



UNEP Giher Trust Funds 

Jwmr Professional O m c m  

320 2es 
4 591 39 655 

1 5 0 w i  398 w1 745 I32 
835 25m 1 178 

MkCeibnsolsincrmc 
TOlSi i m  M9 ZM) 375 4 581 159954 1508311 422 210 747 110 
mQm4FU9 

s ~ n ~ l a o t h a r p ~ n ~ d - s  347 270 (8) 595 480 201 573 217 550 749 177 
TlilVtl 4 m  21 418 7 238 45 124 



UNEP Other TNS~ Funds 

Junior Pfohsrion8l Ofmen, 

672 1W 779 (Yo 117593 119414 256875 k582634 4855654 
l Q O B O  911 253 24 832 13 272 11563 189118 ze3 366 322 809 

522 
790 712 768 417 803 MI 1% 885 130917 275853 4 W D W  51889115 

393 095 9741MI 744 8 9  117751 79818 1822213 4 8 M 8 9  4432157 
l W W  

780 643 

11 1511 15677 6Wd 6 759 IT 119512 
I In 

plnod m w.20 1511sM 1% 1 0  l l 3 M 8  112351 213970 3 5 M M 5  3137597 
Po0513 148 907 105576 153911 2CdW 2 7 I u I I  3WM5 RexmvmMdNrd W-,Mdolpe.ariod 327 y1s 



Al5915lAdd.6 

602 700 542 700 
BQfQmsQ 

.._ .. . - .. 
127 135 188110 

Total lnwme 729 835 741 810 

ComctuaI services 
Trawl 
Operating expenses 
Acquisitions 
Pmpnmme support costs 

5 000 
58 279 40 349 
43 937 18 005 

158 138 164 410 
5 858 8 918 

statemant x 34 580 29 204 
P& award 400 ow 400 OW 

Exwsa"1aIll of incurnu owr oxmndltllm 29 043 67 026 
Total Expenditure 700 792 853 884 

Tnnsfkto End&enl Fund. Cumnl pew (38 141) (29 820) 
Nel ~ U ( s h ~ l l )  of Income war eapenditum (ewe) 51) u)o 
Reserves and fund balancer. beginning of psnod 49 894 (8 312)- 
R e u m  and fund balances, end of pee 40 897 49 994 

Endomnent Fund - WlnninQ of psrlod 1 505 319 1 475 899 
Endomnenl Fund ~ and of penod 1543480 1 505 319 

f en I 
aaat 31- 

&s& 
Cash and tam depodta 
Interfund receivable 

SFh 3.1 1658446 1 772 594 
?Note 8 86 

other accounts receivable 1 979 1980 
Total assets 1 858 511 1 774 574 

80 478 Interfund payable Note 6 
Omer accounts payable 523 2 638 
ReSRWe for obligations 73 832 138 145 

Total Iiabillties 74 155 218 281 

LLhbium 

Reserves and fund balm- 
Endowment Fund 1543480 1 505 319 
Cumulative surplus/(defiat) 40 897 49 994 

Total Ilablibe~, reserves and fund balances 1858511 i 774 574 
Total maowas and fund bolan-r 1 584 358 1 555 313 
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Statement X 

&eci.i Accwnt P sllwamm& 

Statement of 
for the biennium 2002-2005 end#d 5 I December 2003 

rn 2Q!x 
IWamQ 

Programme support income 
UNEP G W r a l  Trust Funds 
MJtiiateral Fund 

__ ~ 

Refisreme 

stnment v 11 683 169 8 689 709 
statemant VI 485 338 376 170 

UNEP Technical Cooperation Trust Funds statement VII 3 524 109 3322044 
UNEP Junior P r o f e s s i ~ l  Omcars Programme Statement Vlll 566 383 544 008 
UNEP Sosakowa Enwonmcnt Prize Statement IX 34 680 29 204 
UNFIP 590 787 503 300 
UNEP Emmarked Contributions stauna XI 1252 117 376 229 

Interestime 726 083 368 863 
M i l a -  income 382 388 52 154 

Totel In- 19 244 964 14 261 681 

15 684 762 14 260 336 
564 175 1 375 564 
104404 354 857 
301 921 376 798 
21 006 10 125 

Total Expenditure 16 676 268 I6  377 700 
Excers/(drwtfall) of income over expenditurn 2568696 (2116019) 
Transfer tdhom operatmg reserve 500 ooo 
Pnor psnod adlUshnenb (771 376) (69 424) 
Net emUsl(sh0rtlall) of in- over expoditwe (1 685 443) 
Pmwsional Bavlngs on or cancellation of Dnor pericds' OMi~at10ns 113 782 835 475 

1 797 320 

Transfer fmml(to)United Nations ORm /it Nairobi 
and Other Funds H 9  i I B 1  ~ . -  . ._, 
Rssecves m d  fund balances, beginning of period 1 658 937 

3 550 921 
2 508 905 
1 658 937 Re8ervss and fund balances. end of period 

Operabng Reserve. Beginning of penod 2 ow 000 2 5 0 0 m  
OWreting R-e - End of  nod 2 wo OW 2 wo 000 

M m e n t  of am&. IkMI itler. reaerrw and fund 
as at 31 u b e r  2003 

&sts 
Cash and ten deposits 
InMund receivable 
Other accwnts receivable 

sh 3.1 6 081 496 1 702 234 
Note 6 2 510 042 

21 214 3 234 
Deferred chames 3 234 

Total assets 6902710 4 218 744 

LhQwss 
Intorfund psynMe Note 6 106717 
Other Bawnts payable 261 894 107 934 
Resew for obligalions 983 378 451 873 

Total liabilities 1 351 789 559 807 

w a n d  funQpplpIlEpp 
operating reserve 2 000 000 2 000 OM) 
CUmUlabve surplus 3 550 921 1 658 937 

3 658 937 
4 218 744 

Total mse4ves and fund balances 
Tog1 I l a b l l l ~ .  msuves and lund balances 

5 550 921 
ti YO2 710 

59 



98s Wl OOt 1Sl OL6Zll FR t 581 SP BLZEZL 588 LO1 E 

om EE0 1 
021 BE KZ BE OSB 0 201 11 8Lt 111 8 

om s 580s 

S 



asL an (IVL QnL 2003 2001 

BQqm 
WdunW mnllbmnr 342272 2 851 SM) 1 5 3 m  1006012 53 058 BY 24 Is1 745 
hmrt kmma 11 e44 47 390 2 359 11 145 386058 m o o 1  
M i i l h e o u r  income 7 TBO 58820 342821 

5349712  25425587 

Sun and o m  p . ~ n w l  me 16467 l W 5 1 s B  8 818 072 4 447 857 
Cmmbu.1 satvisas 292 3 1  823 724 144 583 342 e f i  1565893d 8251004 

2229273 4 1 W b  mw 1 287 4 0  870 
10200m1 4718839 oparn&q *xQ.n.er 5513 1244843 (582) 140237 

Aquukmr 773 470 007 195 087472 3UW5 
F d w h i p .  ~nn1.lrd mnlnbumnr . 45032 
Pwmw I U W ~  mm SIaUmen. X 41 393 3 1  287 18769 82 188 1252117 378229 

Total bmnditum 359 799 4 370 727 18s 145 5-45 017 39110131 W M l  450 

Emrd(shoma1)) of & m e  over expndnun (5 843) (1 4e4 178) n $80) 472 110 14249581 8lh9817 
($7 871) (83 079) RWlurdtO Doncfr 

Priorpanod adluatrnam W l W  1080917 498 935 (5U 7781 
Net ~Ceul(ihOm.ll1 d hmme over 
exp-jmm 80257 (383201) 
P m ~ ~ n U U l i n g i  mwan~le l ion o l  

TOW koam 353958 2808 549 155 W5 1 017 1E7 
mEm!t&Q 

(7 180) 472 110 14iwru5 6w8080 

103785 185804 

cab .nd 1.m -MI S W U b  3 1 254 585 1 139 932 15882 589 588 30 720 428 14 431 394 

2758054 916 109 Vounurypiedws hCeivabk 67 014 
2 311 957 3 052 724 

UM 

1 958 627 1622 515 Nae 6 Imlund recawable 

Olher a c m u n ~  -wablm ea 881 
Wemd chimes 530 982 618 199 

TObIIWII  254585 1807908 15982 589 58B 38 248 183 20 022 742 

Nile 6 82 243 48 170 5 785 80 487 4%3333 134776 
. I272285 2 205 2 3 8 3 1 5  638015 

4 h M M  
I"luI"nd p.ywe 

- ( € 3  287) 
OIheraaountS payable 
oman€mhas 
Reseo~ye for obbgalon 51 719 183 1 0  32 803 47 204 4 eru 981 3 432 w3 
W e d  mud#* IOOOW 105 929 

1014 IYbiltiei 133952 1602 124 36 588 109876 7 622 538 4 233 527 

m- 
C U m U l l l i  m@r 120 823 205 785 (22 6 W  479 712 M a 3 8 2 5  15819215 
701.1 RseNsl and hmd balances 120 823 205 185 122 m) 479 712 30e23825 15819215 

T o l l  IbiWma. Rsew.s mnd fund balams 254585 1807809 15 982 589 588 38 248 183 20 022 742 
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Support of the Mediterranean Action Plan 

Statement of income and expenditure and changes in reserves and fund balances 
for the biennium 2002-2003 ended 31 December 2003 

Income 
Voluntary contributions 
interest income 

[United States dollars) 

Reference 
800 000 800 000 
7 776 3 089 

Miscellaneous income 516 19 874 
Total income 808 292 822 963 

Expenditure 
Staff and other personnel costs 
Operating expenses 

342 002 132 148 
357 062 319 199 

Acquisitions 464 954 241 842 
Total Expenditure I164018 693 189 
Excessl(shortfal1) of income over expenditure (355 726) 129 774 
Prior period adiustments (7 371) 
Net excessl(shortfal1) of income over expendnure (355 726) 122 403 
Reserves and fund balances, beginning of period 529 885 407 482 
Reserves and fund balances, end of period 174 159 529 885 

Statement of assets, liabilities. reserves and fund balances 
as at 31 December 2003 

Cash and term deposits 146 
Interfund receivable Note 6 216 305 548 183 
Other accounts receivable 827 

Total assets 217 132 540 329 
Liabilities 

Assets 

Other accounts payable 39 
Reserve for obligations 42 973 18 405 

Total liabilities 42 973 18 444 

Reserves and fund balances 
Cumulative surplus 174 159 529 885 

Total reserves and fund balances 174 159 529 885 
Total liabilities, reserves and fund balances 217 132 548 329 
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Statement Xlll 

Support of the Actlon Plan for the Carlbbean Environment Programme (Jarnalca f) 

Statement of income and exwnditure and chanaer in reserves and fund balances 
for the b l e n n i u p  

[United States dollars) 

29p1 
98% 48584 

lncOme R e k w n !  
Voluntary contributions 
Interest income 24 
Miscellaneous inwme 175 
Total Income 98880 48608 

Exwnditure 
Operating expenses 
Total Expenditure 
Excess/(shortfall) of income over expenditure 

Exwnditure 
Operating expenses 642 12 934 

Excess/(shortfall) of income over expenditure 98238 35674 
Total Expenditure 642 12 934 

Pnor period adjustments (178 791) (796) 
Net excesshhotlfall) of income over emenditure (80553) 34878 
Reserves and fund balances. beginnmg'of period '80 553. 45 675 
Reserves and fund balances, end of period 80 553 

Statement of assets. IlablliUes, reserves and fund balances 
as at 31 December 2003 

&gels 
Cash and term deposits Sch 3.1 41 064 16 283 
Interfund receivable Note 6 - 73624 
Total assets 41 064 89907 

Liabilities 
Interfund Davable Note 6 41 064 
Other accounts payable 9 354 
Total liabilities 41 084 9 354 

Reserves and fund balances 
Cumulative surplus - 80553 
Total reserves and fund balances 80 553 

Total liabilities, reserves and fund balances 41 064 89907 
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Revolving Fund Activities 

Statement of income and exDenditure and chanaes in reserves and fund 
balances 

for the biennium 2002-2003 ended 31 December 2003 
[United States dollars) 

Statement XN 

Income Reference 2003 2001 
Sale of publications 104 726 116 274 
Royalties 51 050 3446 
Miscellaneous income 10 699 11 879 
Total Income 166 475 131 599 

Expenditure 
Contractual services 
Travel 
Operating expenses 

148 128 90 020 
11 949 19 871 

14 906 
Acquisitions 2 575 
Total Expenditure 160 077 127 372 
Excess/(shortfall) of income over expenditure 6 398 4 227 
Net excesslfshortfall) of income over expenditure 6 398 4 227 
Transfer from (to) other Funds 
Provisional savings on or cancellation 

(6 447) (4 227) 

of prior periods' obligations 49 
Reserves and fund balances, beginning of period 200 000 200 000 
Reserves and fund balances, end of period 200000 200000 

Statement of assets, Ilabllltreo. reserves and fund balances 
as at 31 December 2003 

Assets 
lnterfund receivable Note 6 216 977 171 699 
Inventon 17 009 
Deferred charges 17 804 

Total assets 216 977 206 512 

Liabilities 
Other accounts payable 10 272 6 463 
Reserve for obligations 6 705 49 

Total liabilities 16 977 6 512 

Reserves and fund balances 
Cumulative surplus 200000 200000 

Total reserves and fund balances 200000 200000 
Total liabilities, reserves and fund 
balances 216977 206512 

64 



Al59lSlAdd.6 

Notes to the financial statements 

Note 1 
The United Nations Environment Programme and its objectives 

The United Nations Environment Programme (UNEP) was established by 
the General Assembly by its resolution 2997 (XXVII) of 15 December 1972. with 
the Governing Council as its policy-making organ and a secretariat to serve as a 
focal point for environmental action and coordination within the United Nations 
system. 

The mandate of UNEP has been confirmed through various legislative 
measures, both by the General Assembly and the Governing Council of UNEP. 
UNEP also provides the secretariats to several global and regional conventions that 
have been established in areas related to UNEP programme activities. 

The activities for which UNEP is responsible fall within the framework 
of programme 10, Environment, of the revised medium-term plan for the period 
2002-2005.a The overall objective of programme 10 is to provide leadership and 
encourage partnership in caring for the environment by inspiring, informing and 
enabling nations and peoples to improve their quality of life without compromising 
that of future generations. The main elements of the strategy for achieving the 
overall objective include: (a) filling the information and knowledge gap on critical 
environmental issues through more comprehensive assessments; (b) identifying and 
further developing the use of appropriate integrated policy measures in tackling the 
root causes of major environmental concerns; and (c) mobilizing action for better 
integration of international action to improve the environment, particularly in 
relation to regional and niultilateial agieements, as well as United Nations system- 
wide collaborative arrangements. 

Note 2 
Summary of significant accounting policies 

The accounts of UNEP are maintained in accordance with the Financial 
Regulations of the United Nations as adopted by the Oeiieial Assenibly, the rules 
formulated by the Secretary-General as required under the Regulations, 
administrative instructions issued by the Under-Secretary-General for Management 
or the Controller and specific decisions of the Governing Council of UNEP. They 
also take fully into account the United Nations system accounting standards, as 
adopted by the Administrative Committee on Coordination (ACC) (now the United 
Nations System Chief Executives Board for Coordination). The Organization 
follows International Accounting Standard 1 on the disclosure of accounting 
policies, as modified and adopted by ACC, as shown below: 

(i) Going concern. consistency, and accrual are fundamental accounting 
assumptions. Where fundamental accounting assumptions are followed in 
financial statements, disclosure of such assumptions is not required. If a 
fundamental accounting assumption is not followed, that fact should be 
disclosed together with the reasons; 

(a) 

(b) 

(c) 

(a) 

a Official Records of the General AssembIy, Fijii-seventh Session, Supplement No. 6 
(Af57f6IRev. 1). 
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(ii) Prudence, substance over form, and materiality should govern the 
selection and application of accounting policies; 

(iii) Financial statements should include clear and concise disclosure of all 
significant accounting policies which have been used; 

(iv) The disclosure of the significant accounting policies used should be an 
integral part of the financial siateInenLs. Tliese policies should normally be 
disclosed in one place; 

(v) Financial statements should show comparative figures for the 
corresponding period of the preceding financial period; 

(vi) A change in an accounting policy that has a material effect in the current 
period or may have a material effect in subsequent periods should be disclosed 
together with the reasons. The effect of the change should, if material, be 
disclosed and quantified. 

(h) The Organization’s accounts are maintained on a “fiind accounting” 
basis. Each fund is maintained as a distinct financial and accounting entity with a 
separate self-balancing, double-entry group of accounts. Separate financial 
statements are prepared for each fund or for a group of funds of the same nature. 

The financial period of the Organization is a biennium and consists of 
two consecutive calendar years for all funds. 

Generally, income, expenditure, assets and liabilities are recognized on 
the accrual basis of accounting. 

The accounts of the Organization are presented in United States dollars. 
Accounts maintained in other currencies are translated into United States dollars at 
the time of transactions, at rates of exchange established by the Under-Secretary- 
General for Management. In respect of such currencies, the financial statements, 
prepared at such intervals as may be prescribed by the Controller under delegation 
of authority from the Under-Secretary-General for Management, shall reflect the 
cash, investments, unpaid pledges and current accounts receivable and payable in 
currencies other than the Unitcd Statcs dollar translatcd at the applicable United 
Nations rates of exchange in effect as at the date of the statements. In the event that 
the application of actual exchange rates at the date of the statements would provide 
a valuation materially different from the application of the Organization’s rates nf 
exchange for the last month of the financial period, a footnote will be presented 
quantifying the difference. 

The Organization’s financial statements are prepared on thc historical 
cost basis of accounting, and are not adjusted to reflect the effects of changing 
prices for goods and services. 

The Organization’s financial statements are prepared in accordance with 
the ongoing recommendations of the Working Party on Accounting Standards to the 
United Nations System Chief Executives Board for Coordination. 

The results of the Organization’s operations presented in statements I, I1 
and 111 are shown in summary by general type of activity, as well as on a 
consolidated basis for funds other than those that are reported on separately. Their 
prcscntation on a consolidatcd basis does not imply that the va~ious separate funds 

(c) 

(d) 

(e) 

( f )  

(g )  

(h) 
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can be intermingled in any way, since, normally, resources may not be utilized 
between funds. 

The regular budget of the United Nations meets part of the costs of the 
secretariat of the United Nations Environment Programme established under 
resolution 2997 (XXVII). Details of the expenditure may be found in the financial 
report and audited financial statements of the United Nations. They are not 
considered further in the present report. 

(i) 

(j) Income: 

(i) Voluntary contributions from Member States or other donors are recorded 
as income on the basis of a written commitment to pay monetary contributions 
at specified times within the current financial period. Pledges to the 
Environment Fund remaining unpaid after four year5 arc: written off with the 
approval of the Governing Council. Pledges to trust funds which involve the 
share of a party or parties for a budget convention that has been approved by 
Governments are written off with the approval of the conference of parties in 
question. Finally, pledges to trust funds which are purely voluntary are written 
off with the approval of the Executive Director of UNEP; 

(ii) Income received under inter-organization airangements represents 
allocations of funding from agencies to enable the Organization to administer 
projects or other programmes on their behalf; 

(iii) Allocations from other funds represent monies appropriated or 
designated from one fund for transfer to and disbursement from another fund; 

(iv) Income for services rendered includes reimbursements for salaries of 
staff members and other costs which are attributable to providing technical and 
administrative support to other organizations; 

(v) Interest income includes all interest earned on deposits in various bank 
accounts and investment income earned on marketable securities and other 
negotiable instruments in the cash pool. All realized losses and net unrealized 
losses on short-term investments are offset against investment income. 
Investment income and costs associated with the operation of investments in 
the cash pool are allocated to participating funds; 

(vi) Miscellaneous income includes refunds of expenditures charged to prior 
periods, income from net gains resulting from currency translations, monies 
accepted for which no purpose was specified, uncashed cheques one year from 
their date of issuance, interest from counterpart contributions to the 
Environment Fund and other sundry income. Income for future financial 
periods is recorded as deferred income in the current financial period, as 
referred to in item (m) (ii) below. 

(k) Expenditure: 

(i) Expenditures are incurred against authorized allotments. Total 
expenditures reported include unliquidated obligations and disburscmcnts; 

(ii) Expenditures incurred for non-expendable property are charged to the 
budget of the period when acquired and are not capitalized. Inventory of such 
non-expendable property is maintained at historical cost; 
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(iii) Expenditures for future financial periods are not charged to the current 
financial period and are recorded as deferred charges as referred to in item (I) 
(iv) below. 

(1) Assets: 

(i) Cash and term deposits comprise funds held in demand deposit accounts 
and interest bearing bank deposits; 

(ii) Investments include marketable securities and other negotiable 
instruments in the cash pool. Cost is defined as the nominal value plus/minus 
any unamortized premiumldiscount. Short-term investments, stated at the 
lower of cost or market value, are disclosed in schedule 3; 

(iii) The United Nations Headquarters cash pool comprises participating 
funds’ share of the cash and term deposits, short-term investments and accrued 
investment income, all of which are managed in the pool. The investments in 
the pool are similar in nature to those referred to in item (1) (ii) above and are 
accounted for as stated therein. Income earned on the investments of the cash 
pool and the costs associated with the operation of these investments are 
allocated to participating funds. Each participating fund’s share in the cash 
puul is reported separately in its statements; 

(iv) Deferred charges normally comprise expenditure items that are not 
properly chargeable to the current financial period. They will be charged as 
expenditure in a subsequent period. These expenditure items include 
commitments approved for future financial periods in accordance with 
financial rule 106.7. Such commitments are normally restricted to 
administrative requirements of a coiitiiiuiiig nature and to coniracts or legal 
obligations where long lead-times are required for delivery; 

(v) For purposes of the balance sheet statements only, those portions of 
education grant advances that are assumed to pertain to the scholastic years 
completed as at the date of the financial statement are shown as deferred 
charges. The full amounts of the advances are maintained as accounts 
reccivablc from staff mcnibers until the required prods of entitlement are 
produced, at which time the budgetary accounts are charged and the advances 
settled; 

(vi) Maintenance and- repair of assets are charged against the appropriate 
budgetary accounts. Furniture, equipment and other non-expendable property 
are not included in the assets of the organization. Acquisitions are charged 
against budgctary accounts in the year of purchasc. The valuc of nor1- 
expendable property is recorded in memoranda accounts, and is disclosed in 
note 7 below. 

(m) Liabilities, reserves and fund balances: 

(i) Operating and other types of reserves are included in the totals for 
reserves and fUnd balances shown in the financial statements; 

(ii) Deferred income includes pledged contributions for future periods and 
other income received but not yet earned; 

(i i i)  Comoiilrrierits or ihe Organization relating to prior, current, and future 
financial periods are shown as unliquidated obligations. Current-period 
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obligations relating to special accounts remain valid for 12 months following 
the end of the biennium to which they relate. Obligations for most technical 
cooperation activities remain valid for 12 months after the end of each 
calendar year. 

(n) Financial reserve. As stated in rule 209.2 of the Financial Rules of the 
Environment Fund, the purpose of the financial reserve is to guarantee the financial 
liquidity and integrity of the Fund, to compensate for uneven cash flows and to meet 
such other similar requirements as may be decided upon by the Governing Council. 
The level of the financial reserve is determined from time to time by the Governing 
Council, and the Council, in its decision 20/31, paragraph 14, authorized the 
Executive Director to further increase the level of the financial reserve to 
620million as and when carry-over resources become available over and above 
those needed to implenient the prugrarnme approved. 

Operational reserve. With regard to the special account for programme 
support costs, an operational reserve is required to be held to protect against 
unforeseen shortfalls in delivery, inflation and currency adjustments or to liquidate 
legal obligations in the event of abrupt terminations of activities financed from 
extrabudgetary resources. 

Revolving Fund. The Governing Council, by its decision lI/(II) of 
22 March 1974, established a Revolving Fund (Infomation) to finance the 
production of materials in support of national programmes of public information and 
education in the environment field. The Council further decided that the income 
from the sale or rental of information materials, the production of which was 
financed from the Revolving Fund (Information) shall be credited to that Fund. Any 
cumulative surplus in excess of $200,000 is transferred to the EnviroiunenL Furid a1 
the end of the financial period. 

(4) Project expenditures with respect to UNEP projects undertaken by 
cooperating agencies and supporting organizations are recorded in the UNEP 
accounts on the basis of actual expenditure of funds reported by them to UNEP. 
Expenditures include the unliquidated obligations of cooperating agencies. The 
unspcnt balanccs of the remittances held by agencies and organizations are recoided 
as advances in the UNEP accounts. 

Contingencies. Provision to meet contingent liabilities for compensation 
payments under appendix D to the Staff Rules of the United Nations for the 
personnel financed from trust funds and the Environment Fund has been made and 
is calculated on the basis of 1 per cent of the net base salary. Furthermore, since July 
2002, provision, calculated at 8 pcr ccnt of nct base salary, is made in the 
Environment Fund and trust funds for end-of-service benefits. 

UNEP follows the general provisions of the Secretary- 
General's bulletin on the establishment and management of trust funds 
(ST/SGB/I 88) and its supporting administrative instructions (ST/AI/285 and 
ST/AI/286), although, as indicated in paragraph 3 of ST/SGB/I 88, that bulletin does 
not apply to funds such as the Fund of the United Nations Environmcnt Programmc, 
which are subject to the administrative authority of their executive heads. 

At the eleventh meeting of the Executive Committee of the Multilateral 
Fund for the Implementation of tiit: Munlredl Protocol, it was decided that 
promissory notes constituted committable resources and that the deposit of a 

( 0 )  

(p) 

(r) 

(s) Trust funds. 

(t) 
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promissory note would be considered to be payment of a country’s contribution to 
the Multilateral Fund. Consequently, promissory notes received from member 
countries have been reflected accordingly in the accounts of the Multilaterai Fund. 

The United Nations Environment Programme is a member organization 
participating in the United Nations Joint Staff Pension Fund, which was established 
by the United Nations General Assembly to provide retirement, death, disability and 
related benefits. The Pension Fund is a funded defined benefit plan. The financial 
obligation of the Organization to the Pension Fund consists of its mandated 
contribution at the rate established by the United Nations General Assembly 
together with its share of any actuarial deficiency payments under article 26 of the 
Regulations of the Fund. Such deficiency payments are only payable if and when 
the United Nations General Assembly has invoked article 26, following 
detemiination that there is a I equirenient for deficiency payments based on an 
assessment of the actuarial sufficiency of the Fund as of the valuation date. As at 
the date of the current Financial Statements, the General Assembly has not invoked 
that provision. 

Note 3 
Financial reporting by agencies and supporting organizations 

All agencies and organizations, except 13, engaged in the implementation of 
projects funded by UNEP andor  its associated trust funds reported their 
expenditures as at 71 necemher 2007. 

Note 4 
The cash flow summary 

by International Accounting Standard 7. 

Note 5 
Environment Fund (statement IV) 

Accounts receivable. The totals below provide a comparison of thc 
amounts shown in statement IV as other accounts receivable, as at 31 December 
2003 and 2001 (in United States dollars): 

(u) 

Statement 111 is based on the indirect method of cash flow statements covered 

(a) 

2003 2001 

Governments 

Staff members 

Vendors 

Specialized agencies 
Other United Nations agencies 

Other 

~ ~ ~~ 

310 415 258 555 
3 417 288 

196 631 645 408 

10 035 19 325 

3 037 416 
204 068 I38 243 

1 094 224 

7 718 515 

Total 9 533 888 7 516 235 
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(b) Accounts payable. The totals below provide a comparison of the amounts 
shown in statement IV as accounts payable, as at 31 December 2003 and 2001 
(in United States dollars): 

2003 2001 

Governinents 

Staff members 

Vendors 
Specialized agencies 

Other United Nations agencies 

Other 

84 33s 368 207 

1 046 300 447 578 
255 191 1 332 057 

41 267 
5 379 056 

33 213 101 386 
I 1  073 070 

Total 12 492 169 7 669 551 

(c) Deferred charges. The totals below provide a comparison of the amounts 
shown in statement IV as deferred charges, as at 31 December 2003 and 2001 
(in United States dollars): 

2003 2001 

Education grant advances 338 SO6 516 222 

Commitments against future years 285 611 17 787 
Other 63 235 24 179 

Total 687 352 558 188 
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Note 6 
Inter-fund balances 

In t e r - fund  b a l a n c e s  reflect t r ansac t ions  b e t w e e n  t h e  Environment Fund, trust 
funds, other special accounts, the United Nations General Fund and other United 
Nations f u n d s  which are normally settled periodically. The following table is a 
breakdown of the inter-fund balances (in United States dollars): 

72 

2003 ZOOl 

InterIfund balances receivable 

I I  379 531 Environment Fund (statement IV) 

General Trust Funds (statement V) 220 772 4 341 362 
Technical Cooperation Trust Funds (statement VII) I36 916 3 522 909 

Junior Professional Officers Programme (statement VIII) 3 452 1 010 635 

Sasakawa Environment Prize (statement IX) 

Special account for programme support costs (statement X) 2 510 042 

Earmarked contributions (statement XI) 1 856 527 1622 5 1 5  

21 291 368 

Rh 

Non-convertible currency counterpart contributions - 
Mediterranean (statement XII) 216 305 548 183 

Non-convertible currency counterpart contributions - 
Caribbean (statement XIII) 73 624 

Revolving Fund (Information) (statement XIV) 216 977 171 699 

Subtotal  23942403 25180500 

Inter-jund balances payable 

14 566 611 General trust funds (statement V) 

Technical Cooperation Trust Funds (statement VII) I3  220 554 

Junior Professional Officers Programme (statement VIII) 264 324 341 216 

Sasakawa Environment Prize (statement IX) 80 478 

Special account for programme support (statement X) 

Earmarked Contributions (statement XI) 463 333 194 176 

Non-convertible currency counterpart contributions - 
Caribbean (statement XIII) 41 064 

7 420 816 

23 5 10 252 

106 717 

31806506 28403635 

Net inter-fund payable (7 864 103) (3 223 135) 

?he nel inter-fundpayable is due to/from 

Multilateral Fund (statement VI) (7 276 955) 273 685 

United Nations Offlice at Nairobi (743 508) (1 276 427) 
UN-Habitat 2 856 198 (2 060 449) 

United Nations General Fund (2 699 837) f I59 944) 

(7 864 103) (3 223 135) 
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Note 7 
Non-expendable property 

In accordance with United Nations accounting policies, non-expendable 
property is not the fixed assets of the Organization but is charged against the current 
appropriations acquired. The following table shows the value of non-expendable 
property (in United States dollars): 

UNEP regional and Total Total 
UNEP headquarters UNKP pmlects ourposted ofices 2003 ZOOI 

Opening balance 9 I78 747 I 370 237 3 529 026 14 078 010 I I 245 993 

2 940 348 Additions I 032 767 422 187 433 871 1 888 825 
Disposals ( I96 966) ( 194) (197 160) (108 331) 

Adjustments 86 607 86 607 

Endinx balance 10 211 514 1 682 065 3 962 703 15 856 282 14 078 010 

Note 8 
Reserves mod fund balances 

(a) The cumulative surplus account of the United Nations Environment 
Programme represents savings in the liquidation of obligations for prior periods, 
contributions from Mcmbcr Statcs and othcr dcsignatcd incomc. 

The excesd(shortfal1) of income over expenditure in the Trust Fund for 
the Montreal Protocol on Substances that Deplete the Ozone Layer amounting to 
$1,833,204 is covered by a drawdown from the fund balance to cover part of the 
approved programme budget, in accordance with decision XI121, paragraphs 5 and 
6, decision XIII130, paragraph 5, and decision XIV/41, paragraphs 6 and 7, of the 
Meetings of the Parties to the Montreal Protocol. 

Note 9 
Prior-period adjustments 

as prior-period adjustments, as at 3 1 December 2003 and 2001: 

(b) 

The totals below provide a comparison of the amounts shown in statement IV 

2003 2001 
- - 

Adjustment to prior-period pledges 
Write-off 

Prior-period charges 

Others 

(94 565) 
I709 

378 202 
IS7 454 

~~ ~ 

(429 269) 

I 6 5 8  

406 013 
21 989 

442 199 390 

73 




